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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or in this report misleading.
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Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the first listed beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has nine beauty and slimming centres with
five in Hong Kong, one in Macau and three in Mainland China
including one in Beijing, one in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen.
All these centers are under two brand names “Sau San Tong”
(original brand of the Group) and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015). All
these centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty
and slimming services, health management and anti-ageing
treatment programs etc.. Combining the effective treatments
and comprehensive follow up services, all programmes enable
customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body
shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services, the Group was proud to
receive “The Most Outstanding Achievement Asian Beauty and
Health Brand Award” from International Beauty and Health Brand
Festival, Asia and is honoured to be the “Caring Company” for 10
consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and with
the additions of international famous brands.
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With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and franchise co-operation business, the
Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class services to our

customers.

In order to fully utilise the idle funds of the Group, the Group has
expanded in several new business segments in recent years.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the

Group.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business
segment of provision of money lending services. The Group
provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging
from several months to 2 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s
targeted corporations and individuals are small to medium sized
corporations which include both listed and non-listed corporations
and businessmen in various industries. This money lending
business will diversify the income stream of the Group and
broaden its revenue base in order to enhance the capital use of
the Group as well as the overall interests of the Company and its
shareholders.
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-nE —E-\F Etf ZERE ZE-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET TET
2,423,176 2,607,987 2,228,417 1,698,550 1,548,256
(2,296,714) (2,362,517) (1,958,591) (1,500,127) (1,335,614)
126,462 245,470 269,826 184,423 212,642
6,196 6,520 7,022 21,890 18,225
(84,978) (97,948) (93,875) (83,783) (80,620)
(116,980) (116,789) (116,120) (103,377) (97,964)
(69,300) 37,259 66,853 19,153 52,283
2,712) (4,382) (4,157) (3,165) (4,424)

- - - - (2,047)
(72,012) 32,877 62,696 15,988 45,812
(13,700) (18,771) (25,143) (11,400) (7,818)
(85,712) 19,106 37,558 4,588 37,994
156,591 173,784 171,231 108,834 34,809
919,924 1,152,906 1,122,110 683,855 560,996
(196,873) (331,509) (355,758) (217,402) (169,054)
723,051 821,403 766,352 466,453 391,942
(3,888) (4,169) (3,761) (22,504) (41,456)
875,754 991,024 933,822 552,783 385,295
860,960 960,152 921,458 537,907 366,541
14,794 30,872 12,364 14,876 18,754
875,754 991,024 933,822 552,783 385,295







On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year Under
Review”) to the shareholders of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

2019 was not a good year for the Group and the entire retail
and services industry in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The growth in gross domestic
production was only 6.6% in the PRC and 3.0% in Hong Kong
which are the lowest level in recent years. In addition, the stock
markets in Hong Kong was also very sluggish. This coupled
with the threat of US-China trade war have negative impact on
consumer confidence. As a result, the revenue and performance
of the beauty and slimming business were not satisfactory. The
local financial market also performed not well which resulted in
unsatisfactory performance of the Group’s securities investments
business. However, the product distribution business of the Group
in China still managed to perform satisfactory.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional
approach consistently during the Year Under Review, the Group
has also proactively identified different opportunities of acquisitions
and development.
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Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 19
years. Regardless of the changes in economic and business
environment over the years, Sau San Tong has long been
upholding its founding beliefs, dedicated to address customers’
needs in a sincere, caring, professional and devoted manner,
abiding by industrial ethics and conduct. Along the way, Sau
San Tong has been sharing ups and downs and evolving side by
side with its customers! Establishing the market leading position
is a hard-earned achievement. We will continue to adhere to the
Group’s principles, conduct and service attitude while introducing
new elements by launching innovative treatments and products,
leading Sau San Tong and its customers to continue the legends
of beauty. On top of expanding business, the management team
puts equal emphasis on corporate governance, risk management
and social services. These corporate social responsibilities are of
utmost importance to Sau San Tong’s sustainable development
in the long run. In the effort to build a harmonious society and a
prosperous future, Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates
its care for the community, supports various welfare activities
and sets up a voluntary team to participate in various voluntary
services. For a number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong has
been awarded the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our
continuous care and support to the society.

Looking ahead into 2019, Hong Kong and the PRC economy and
retail business is expected to continue their growth. Although
the threat of US-China trade war may still have negative impact
on consumer confidence in Hong Kong and the PRC, the Group
will strive to capture any business opportunities available. We will
continue to examine the situation carefully and adjust the Group’s
development and investment strategies in the effort of diversifying
its business, which in turn will enable us to respond to the ever-
changing market environment and maximise the interests of the
Group and our shareholders as a whole.
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In respect of the financial performance during the Year
Under Review, the Group’s overall revenue decreased from
approximately HK$2,607,987,000 (including revenues from
securities investments of HK$62,142,000) in the previous year to
approximately HK$2,423,176,000 (including deduction of revenues
from securities investments of HK$40,320,000) in the Year Under
Review, representing a 7.1% decrease.

Contribution to gross profit for the Year Under Review
was approximately HK$126,462,000, with a decrease of
approximately HK$119,008,000 as compared with approximately
HK$245,470,000 for the same period last year. The decrease
in overall revenue was mainly due to decrease in revenue
from the securities investments. Revenue from securities
investments changed from positive contribution of approximately
HK$62,142,000 of last year to deduction of approximately
HK$40,320,000 of the Year Under Review. During the Year
Under Review, general and administrative expenses amounted to
HK$116,980,000 representing an increase of approximately 0.2%
or HK$197,000 from approximately HK$116,783,000 for the same
period last year. The selling and distribution cost decreased by
13.2% or HK$12,970,000 from approximately HK$97,948,000
in last year to approximately HK$84,978,000 of the Year Under
Review. Due to its dedicated efforts in controlling the operating
costs, the Group was able to maintain or reduce the level of
expenses.

As a result, the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$6,439,000 of last year is changed to the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$95,376,000 of
the Year Under Review which is mainly due to change from profit
contribution from the securities investments in last year to loss
from the securities investments in the Year Under Review.
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On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, my fellow members in the Board
and our hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their valuable
contributions and strong support for the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to welcome our new members, Mr.
Roberts, Daniel William, an independent non-executive director of
the Company in the Year Under Review. In addition, | would like to
give my heartfelt appreciation to our ex-honorary chairman and ex-
non-executive director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and our ex-
independent non-executive director Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin who
have resigned and retired, respectively, in the Year Under Review,
for their long-standing support and contribution to the Group. With
our persistent dedication and relentless efforts, | am confident
that the Group will be able to overcome any obstacle ahead and
adhere to its vision and mission to bring rewarding returns to all
shareholders.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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Business Review

In 2019, the economic growth rate in Hong Kong and China was
3.0% and 6.6%, respectively, indicating a slower economic growth
as compared with the growth in last few years. In addition, the
threat of US-China trade war also has negative impact on consumer
confidence. As a result, the beauty and slimming industry in Hong
Kong and China do not perform very well. The performances of the
Group also were not satisfactory in both Hong Kong and China.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$2,423,176,000,
representing a decrease of 7.1% from approximately
HK$2,607,987,000 of last year. This was mainly attributable
to a deduction of contribution from securities investment
of approximately HK$40,320,000 in the Year Under Review
as compared with the positive contribution from securities
investments of approximately HK$62,142,000 in last year. In the
recent years, given that the Hong Kong population maintains the
predominance of females over males and that many Hong Kong
females belong to the high-earning group, females have become
an important consumer group for the Hong Kong retail market with
the beauty and slimming services and products being increasingly
viewed as daily necessities more than luxuries. On the other hand,
the demand for beauty and slimming services and products in the
PRC was stimulated by the increasing middle-class population.
The Group is positive that the performance of the Group will be
improved by riding on the industry leadership in Hong Kong and
China and sound reputation and customer confidence it has built
over the years. The business of distribution sales of cosmetic and
skin care products of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd.
(“Dong Fang”) also has successful strategy through expansion in
online platform sales, generating a relatively stable contribution
to the turnover of approximately HK$2,365,690,000, slightly
decreased by 2.3% from approximately HK$2,422,133,000 of last
year, forming a stable source of revenues for the Group.
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Loss for the year was approximately HK$85,712,000 as compared R & F F AR M % 19,106,000 7T+ F
with profit for the year of approximately HK$19,106,000 of last N EIE4) &85,712,0008 7T RERTE AE
year, as the securities investments business brought along net SR EBEBEFERIENFEFABE 2SR
fair value gain and net realised gains on financial assets at fair BEATERSFEREFRNEFED I
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$20,111,000 20,111,000 Jt & 42,031,000/8 7T * M 4~ [@]
and HK$42,031,000, respectively in last year while net fair value — FEEE(E4R5 N T EEIBEE441,488,000 %
loss of approximately HK$41,488,000 and net realised gains of TTREEB W FRELY1,168,0008 T ©
approximately HK$1,168,000 were recorded in the Year Under

Review.

As at 31 March 2019, cash and bank balances decreased RZE—NF=ZA=1+—8 RE KRBT
to approximately HK$391,743,000 (2018: approximately B D & #91391,743,0008 T (—Z T — N\ F :
HK$496,482,000), whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio #9496,482,000% 7T) - MBI E & b= (BN
of current assets over current liabilities) was 4.67:1 (2018: 3.48:1), BEEERSAGEZHR)AAE467 - 1(ZF
reflecting the adequacy of financial resources. —\F :3.48: 1) RBUBERTE °
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During the Year Under Review, the
slower Hong Kong and China economy
growth and the threat of US-China
trade war have negative impact on
consumer confidence. In addition, the
Group faced various negative factors
such as increasing costs of sales,
rising salaries and inflating rentals. The
beauty, slimming and spa business was
unavoidably affected to some extent in
the Year Under Review and recorded a
24.9% decrease in the overall revenue
of this business segment as compared
to last year.
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The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Hong Kong and the PRC. With extensive
experience in the industry and committed efforts for innovations,
the Group has continuously introduced sophisticated services and
products of the highest quality for its customers, winning the long-
term favour of its customers for its beauty and slimming products
and services while successfully establishing brand advantages
and customer loyalty. To further fortify its leading position in the
industry, the Group has introduced a number of new beauty,
slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries during the
Year Under Review.

As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong,
the Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality
products, professional services and honest operation. Backed by
the strengths of the brand, the Group has won numerous awards
over the years and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC.
increasingly intensive market competition, some industry players

It was strongly trusted by its customers. With

have resorted to all possible means including dishonest sales
methods to secure their market shares. Coupled with various
beauty and slimming incidents during recent years and seriously
weak and outdated government supervision, customer confidence
has been impaired. This, however, has at the same time
encouraged the customer demand for quality beauty and slimming
services. In view of this, the Group will continue to provide quality
products and services. Maintaining the strategy of winning with
quality, the Group will continue to leverage on its professional and
outstanding beauty and slimming technologies, bring its brand
visibility to the full play, and operate with honest and honour, in
order to win over the consumers’ trust, secure a wider business
coverage in the high-end market and thereby realise sustainable

growth and return.
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Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the
Group and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang.
Dong Fang is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the
greater China in terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top
distributor in the East China area. It is responsible for the overall
distribution coverage in the Shanghai region and provides supply
and sales services to its customers via various channels, including
online platforms, electrical appliances merchants, department
stores channel, local modernised retail malls, supermarkets,
small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores, maternity stores
and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally headquartered
in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare, Head &
Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the
Company is responsible for the SK-II business in East and West
China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu
Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongqging city (8 provinces and cities in
total). In the Year Under Review, Dong Fang performance was still
satisfactory which resulted in stable source of growth in revenue
contribution to the Group.

Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing
in the development and introduction of products embedding
advanced technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio
of health and beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its
customers a wider array of sophisticated product choices. This will
in turn further enhance the attraction of the brand name Sau San
Tong and ensure the Group’s leading market position.
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Going forward, the Group will continue to launch different safe and
effective products that meet the different needs of its customers,
helping them to achieve beauty in a healthy way. We believe that
the segment of distribution of health and beauty products will
continue to make a stable contribution to the Group’s results in
the time ahead.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong
brand visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous
market in the PRC back in early 2004 and effectively laid a solid
foundation in the beauty and slimming industry in China ahead
of its counterparts, reaping a sizeable market share. Envying
the outstanding achievement of “Sau San Tong”, competitors,
imitators and even fakers began to spring up like mushroom
on the PRC market where the entry barrier to the industry was
relatively low. To tackle the situation, apart from establishing high-
end flagship centres in China to help clearly identify ourselves, the
Group specially combined the name of our founder, Dr. Cheung
Yuk Shan, Shirley with its brand name to form the new brand of
“IREIMEFE” to establish the uniqueness of the brand, using
it to fully explore the PRC market while letting the market and
consumer more easily distinguish the genuine “Sau San Tong”
brand and its inherent quality and professional products and
services, protecting the consumers’ rights. Since the efforts to
developing the franchise cooperation business in full sail since
December 2010, we have entered into more than 100 franchise
co-operation contracts as at 31 March 2019. The existing number
of franchise co-operation shops also put “sR FHHME S E " on the
top position in the beauty and slimming industry in China.
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Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business
in March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long-
and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and
other recognised securities markets in the overseas as well as
wealth management products purchased from banks and other
financial institutions, with a view to generate additional income
outside its retail business, to widen its revenue base and minimise
the risks of the Group on the overall, in order to enhance the
capital use of the Company as well as the overall interests of the
Company and its shareholders. This new segment of securities
investments has good contribution to the revenue and profit of
the Group in last few years. In the Year Under Review, the stock
market is very sluggish and the securities investment business
does not performed satisfactory. During the Year Under Review,
the Group has recorded a deduction of revenue of approximately
HK$40,320,000 from its investments in the Hong Kong stock
market and unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong. The
investment portfolio included investments in a variety of industries
including construction, real estates, retailing, food and beverage,
finance, industry and education, with the objective of minimising
the risks while maximising the return. As at 31 March 2019,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
approximately HK$113,758,000.

Money Lending Business

In addition, the Group has the business of money leading in order
to better utilise the idle funds to generate additional returns to the
Company. The Group provided both secured and unsecured loans
with terms ranging from several months to 2 years. The Group
has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$12,232,000 for the
year. As at 31 March 2019, the loans and interest receivables
from money lending business amounted to approximately
HK$90,189,000.

Acquisition of Properties

Subsequent to 31 March 2019, the Group intended to acquire
a residential property in Hong Kong through acquisition of a
subsidiary at a consideration of approximately HK$20,000,000 and
the consideration will be satisfied by issuance of new shares. The
acquisition has not yet completed as at the date of this report.
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Outlook

Despite of the unsatisfactory performance in the Year Under
Review, the Group will continue to consistently maintain a positive
attitude to explore, research and develop more sophisticated and
effective health and beauty products and professional treatments,
in order to meet the pursuit and demand for beauty and health
by the ladies in Hong Kong and China and in turn achieve stable
growth and enhance the performance of the Group’s core
business. Meanwhile, the Group is also devoted to the training of
its people, and has specifically devised training courses targeted
at the employees of the franchise co-operation shops on the
mainland market, with the aim to ensure the consistence in the
quality of operation and services of the beauty, slimming and spa
centres across different places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming
business, the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand
to identify new investment opportunities, including appropriate and
timely investments in securities, money lending and properties,
with the objectives of generating additional return, broadening its
revenue base, enhance the efficiency of capital use and further
promote the performance of the Group in different areas. The
Group will meticulously select sound investments with high return
potentials. Moving forward, the Group will concentrate on bringing
its strengths, customer base, reputation and other advantages into
full play in order to actualise stable growth of its core business.
This will be complemented with careful investments in the effort to
bring along more rewarding returns to our investors.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is
dedicated to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards. Beauty and slimming consultants
and technicians of both the direct operations and franchise co-
operation businesses of the Group all received professional training
to ensure the provision of safe services of high quality. Moreover,
the Group is the first slimming company in Hong Kong to set up
a free health services hotline to provide consultation services on
weight management. This move is targeted to take care of different
walks of society through suggesting to those looking to improve
their body the correct ways for a balanced diet, free of charge.
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Awards 18

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
BHEERERAT

AEE 2 S MERERE — BN
KEZEARARBALEE  RAD
BFEE  AEERTMBERES
2 B m W2 B _E SOHE SR M SRR E R
REMLBERE] - AREET

Widely recognised and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services, the Group
was proud to receive “The Most Outstanding
Achievement Asian Beauty and Health Brand

Award” from the International Beauty and Health

Com[cAiny( / L .
Brand Festival, Asia during the Year Under FRAIEREREEZHE -
Review and is honoured to be the “Caring r e "

Company” for ten consecutive years.

Charity P

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking AREBER YUK —BERBBRAEZSARE
in charity affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer % RSESEE TR SN BIREEE
Team” in an effort to support different charity initiatives. During g o REBERDEFE AT EL T
the Year Under Review, the Group continued to make regular ZBH - EEBERAKRIMEERERE - I
charity donations in the pursuit for inner beauty, alongside with its TBRALERE °
yearning for physical perfection.

1Y\
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O L-F
H)iPRO

\ Medical Skin Care Centre
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2019 were approximately
HK$391,743,000 compared to approximately HK$496,482,000
as at 31 March 2018. Gearing ratio of the Group was 0%
(2018: 10.1%), based on total of bank loans of approximately
HK$Nil (2018: approximately HK$99,976,000) and the net
assets of approximately HK$875,754,000 (2018: approximately
HK$991,024,000). As at 31 March 2019, liability of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$200,761,000 (2018:
approximately HK$335,666,000), including trade and other
payables of approximately HK$164,237,000 (2018: approximately
HK$185,685,000) arising mainly from the daily operations
of our subsidiary, Dong Fang, contract liabilities/deferred
income of approximately HK$20,090,000 (2018: approximately
HK$16,175,000), and bank loans of approximately HK$Nil (2018:
approximately HK$99,976,000) arising mainly from the trading
activities of Dong Fang. The liability is intended to be financed by
internal resources of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group
represented by a ratio of current assets over current liabilities
was 4.67:1 (2018: 3.48:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial
resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and
to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group
has no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial
products.

BEXREE RBESRUYBER

R-ZE—NF=ZA=t+—B 2R RRITEH
#9/3891,743,0008 70 MR =ZZ—NF=A
—+—HBI# %496,482,000/8 7T - NEE 2
BEBBHEAO%(ZZE—NF:101%) -
TIRETERBEHNTETL(ZE—NF - &
99,976,000 7T ) & & & JF (A #1875,754,000
B IL(ZF — J\F © #9991,024,0007%8 7T ) 7T
B -R-_TE—AhFZA=Z+—HB XEEZ
B &4 4200,761,0008 T(Z T — \F : 4
335,666,000 70) + BIEENE ZHIEREA
FEATFIE ) 164,237,000 8 L (Z T — \F : 4
185,685,000 L) (EFEREAEEHE QA
— RHZABEL)  AHNARK BTERAL
20,090,000 7L(=Z — )\ £ : 416,175,000
BIL)RBRITEROEETL(ZE—N\F 4
99,976,000 T )X BERE R EEE
&) FHRABERNAASE ZASEREN -
REBZRBERLER(AIRBDEERRBAE
ZHER)AE467 A1(ZFE—\F :348: 1)
R BERTR

EBEE

AEBRMBEZBBRE - AEEEHRR
HEP Z2MBHRRNBREEERR - AEBEE
WBR R Z F YR B RN 90 R - REE
nBEZER  AEETUEEERBEDMN
o NERAREZEE ABERAEZRD
Bo&EB UARERASEIENEESAHR
FBoAREAUERENETR  EFHEBNE
TREMm °

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting
in net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. Details of the
use of proceeds is as follows:

—  approximately HK$40,000,000 was used for the development
of the Group’s money lending business;

—  approximately HK$20,000,000 was used for repayment of
the outstanding amount due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
under the Convertible Note;

—  approximately HK$30,000,000 was used for the development
of securities trading business;

—  approximately HK$16,000,000 was used for acquisition of
a residential property in Hong Kong through acquisition of a

subsidiary; and

— approximately HK$7,000,000 was used for renovation of
office and shops.

The remaining proceeds of approximately HK$239,000,000 was
unutilised at the date of this report.
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Net Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$875,754,000 compared to approximately
HK$991,024,000 as at 31 March 2018. Except for bank deposits
and certain trade receivables of approximately HK$7,003,000
and HK$38,304,000 respectively (2018: certain trade receivables
of HK$222,396,000) pledged for certain banking facilities of the
Group, there are no other charges on the Group’s assets as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 352 (2018: 413)
employees. During the year, the Group’s total staff costs
amounted to approximately HK$93,664,000 (2018: approximately
HK$103,548,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at
31 March 2019 there is an aggregate of 40,975,339 outstanding
options to subscribe for 40,975,339 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 24 February
2016.
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Future Plans

It is in the view of the Group that with the changing of beauty
and slimming services and products into necessities, coupled
with the continued growth of the middle class in China, the
demand for quality products and services will remain on the
upward momentum in both Hong Kong and the PRC. As such,
the Group will continue to spare no efforts in the development
and introduction of different sophisticated and innovative
treatment, products and machines of supreme quality to nurture
our portfolio of services and products into one that is diversified,
accommodated to market demands and attractive to new
customers. We will however adopt a more careful approach under
the uncertainties in the macroeconomy and operating environment
at present.
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Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong,
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the Group plans to increase its promotional efforts on different
social media platforms in order to increase the awareness of the
younger generation for our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO,
and thereby broaden the Group’s customer base. In terms of the
PRC market, the Group will continue to improve brand visibility of
our brands name.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds
on hand into securities, money lending, properties and other
opportunities. Apart from the generation of additional investment
return, it can also open up new revenue bases and promote the
efficiency of capital use, and thereby procure more rewarding
return to our shareholders.
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Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 31, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a member of
the Company’s nomination committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with major in General Finance from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui had worked in Corporate Restructuring
Services for an international accounting firm. He has extensive
experience in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and
securities investment.

Mr. CHAN Ka Kin (“Mr. Chan”), aged 40, is an Executive
Director and joined the Group in September 2017. He is also the
chairman of nomination Committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a degree in Bachelor of Arts in
2001 and has obtained a Postgraduate Diploma in Education from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2005. Mr. Chan has over
10 years of experience in education and investment. Mr. Chan
has the following Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
certificates: Dealing in Securities, Derivatives, Corporate Finance
and Asset Management. Mr. Chan is currently the Court Member
of the University of Hong Kong and a member of the Standing
Committee of the University of Hong Kong Convocation.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Takashi TOGO (“Mr. Togo”), aged 55, is a Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2016, holds a bachelor
degree of Economics from Hitotsubashi University in Japan. He
has over 13 years’ experience in foreign equities investment. He
was the investment manager of several investment funds in Japan
including Yasuda Trust & Banking Corporation Limited and Fuiji
Investment Management Company Limited. He also specializes in
merger and acquisitions, his clients cover major reputable Japan
corporations. Mr. Togo has been serving as the chief executive
officer of a consultancy firm in Japan since 2000. He is also
currently participating in a few big property projects in Tokyo and
Osaka.
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Mr. Togo is currently an executive director of China Information
Technology Development Limited (a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8178).

Independent Non-executive Director

Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP (“Ms. Chiu”), aged
70, joined the Group in October 2013 as an Independent
Non- Executive Director, and also as a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Ms. Chiu has over 29 years of
banking experience in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region. She
was Senior Vice President at the Republic National Bank of
New York for almost thirteen years and was responsible for the
management and investment of third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu
is an associate and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers.
Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the
Hong Kong Government in 1992 and as Cavaliere by the ltalian
Government in 1999 and she is Montblanc Outstanding Business
Lady of the year 2002 in Hong Kong. Ms. Chiu is the chairman
of Prime Investments Group Limited. She is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of National Agricultural Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1236), CPM Group Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1932) and China
Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1515).
Ms. Chiu is licensed to carry out asset management business
under Type 9 regulated activity under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 39, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director and joined the Group in
December 2016. He is a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. He has over 17 years of working experience in
accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring and private
equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree of business
administration from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
also is a Certified Public Accountant in Washington State, USA.
Mr. Lau is an executive director of Risecomm Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1679).
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Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (“Mr. Roberts”), aged 31, is an
independent Non-Executive Director and joined the Group in July
2018. He is the chairman of the audit committee, a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee. He received
his Bachelor of Arts Degree in GMIT, Ireland in 2009, and his
Master of Arts Degree in Utrecht University, The Netherlands in
2011. Mr. Roberts has entrepreneurial experience in Ireland, and
has expertise in public relations, event management and sales
motivation. Mr. Roberts was a Project Manager at the accounting
and finance department of a university in Hong Kong from June
2011 to May 2013. Mr. Roberts was the Director of Business
Development in a financial holdings company until February 2019.
At present, he is currently working for the Liang Yi Museum as a
Project Director.

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 35, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in
December 2015 and is responsible for the overall management,
business strategy and development of the Group. She is also
involved in the formulation of various aspects of the Group’s
policies. Dr. Kwan holds an honorary doctorate degree from the
International American University, U.S.A. and has more than 14
years of experience in the beauty and slimming industry. Dr.
Kwan has served as the management of a beauty and slimming
company in Hong Kong and is an Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Beauty & Wellness Association.
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The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest
of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2019, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A2 and A.2.7

Code provision A2 stipulates the role of the chairman of the
Board. The Company does not have the chairman of the Board
and hence does not compiled with code provision. The Company
has two executive directors who have performed part of the
function of the chairman of the Board.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. The
Company does not have the chairman of the Board of directors.
The management of the Company considered that it was
unnecessary as it would be more transparent and efficient to let
the Independent Non-executive Directors express their views to
all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board. Besides, the
management of the Company always welcomes all Independent
Non-executive Directors to communicate with them directly via
email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time
to time.
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Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates all the non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
term of office for non-executive directors is subject to retirement
from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, (or
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. As
such, the Company considers that such provisions are sufficient to
meet the underlying objective of this code provision.

Code provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Takashi Togo, Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing,
Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William
being the Non-Executive and the Independent Non-executive
Directors, due to other unexpected important engagements, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 24 September 2018.
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Code provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 stipulates that the management shall provide
all members of the board with monthly updates. Management
considers that quarterly updates and periodic instant updates
when developments arising out of the ordinary business instead
of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board to discharge its
duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review, the Executive
Directors have provided, and will continue to provide, to all
Independent Non-executive Directors updates on any material
changes to the position and prospects of the Company, which
are considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to the Board and
allow them to give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the same to serve the purpose required by the code provision
C.1.2.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

Composition

As at 31 March 2019, the Board comprised of six Directors,
including two Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition
of the Board during the year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-executive Director

Dr. Cheng Yuk Shan, Shirley (Honorary Chairman)
(resigned on 10 July 2018)

Mr. Takashi Togo
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on 24 September 2018)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on 10 July 2018)

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley resigned as non-executive Director
and Honorary Chairman of the Company with effect from 10 July
2018 due to her intention to devote more time to her personal
and other business commitments. Dr. Cheung has confirmed to
the Board that she has no disagreement with the Board and there
is no other matter in respect of her resignation that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin was retired as non-executive independent
Director of the Company and did not seek for re-appointment in
the annual general meeting held on 24 September 2018. Mr. Hong
has confirmed to the Board that he has no disagreement with the
Board and there is no other matter in respect of his retirement
that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company.

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s
business and for the exercise of independent decisions. The
Company has one Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors which is more than half of the Board.
They are professionals in different areas and provide independent
opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 23 to 25.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
Under Review are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other material
financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for approval
by the Board before publication, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal control systems and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors,
who are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for discussion. Senior Management provides to
the Directors information on activities and development of the
business of the Group from time to time. The Company Secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both
draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records, and such minutes are open for
inspection with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should be
present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board
considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director has
a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her interest and
abstains from voting.
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Six meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set

out below:

FREBFERABIAN
e ZBEREIIMT

Number of meetings

N A
INE B

c BEFHF

=+

attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of Directors BEEHR HEBITEBRE HE=R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEEREE 6/6 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PR (5 A4 6/6 1.0%
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Honorary — 3R =&+ (425 E) 3/3 100%
Chairman) (RZZE—-N\FEA+H
(resigned on 10 July 2018) BHE)
Mr. Takashi Togo RABE L 6/6 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on 24 BEEHEE(RN-ZZTE—N\F 4/4 100%
September 2018) NAZ+TMHEEE)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ii= vt LS 6/6 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREAE 6/6 100%
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on  Roberts, Daniel William 4t 4 3/3 100%
10 July 2018) (RZZE—-N\FtA+HE
ZF)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZREREREE

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-Executive Director is not appointed
for a specific term, but he is subject to re-election at the AGM
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Mui Wai Sum and
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William shall retire pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association. All the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommended their reappointment. The Company’s circular, to
be sent to the Shareholders, contains detailed information of the
above Directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.
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The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board, the two
Executive Directors have performed part of the function of the
Chairman of the Board.

The roles of the two Executive Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer are separated and performed by Mr. Mui Wai Sum, Mr.
Chan Ka King and Dr. Kwan Fei Ying, respectively to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The two Executive Directors provide leadership and are
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s
business development and daily management and operation
generally.

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on 24
September 2018), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung,
Alfred and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on 10 July
2018). The Committee is chaired by Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (up
to 24 September 2018) and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (from
24 September 2018). No member of the Audit Committee is a
member of the former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

ERZBEEZIERKEFEEIRR TS
B (@BUERLEEMERREFLABE
ZHE (D) EREFEARFRBANERR
o (o) IRFHEB R EIMNE XD ML LB
BB EESEEBISAMI B
B REBFH : ) FHFE  FHRFE
FRRNMEIBRRAFTESSIE L5
BHHE SRR ATwmAEBESREHRE
g

ERZBENRRFE THLFERSTE
Eer  DERMZERS  INERHBEZE
E% BREEABGERLE

FR BELZESCHELIEERZIUHERS
B WEHAKEZFE FHRFEEHBER
= HE?WZ’YEIZ@%EAI%&‘?&E'JBHE\ E
AEt B RRE  YEFEHFTEDWE -

;qﬁ-i'ﬂ'lj_q//\ = _:I’Sé ° %ﬁXE\
EiZ BEREFN AT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHE HEBITEERE HE=R
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman) REMEE(EE) 2/2 100%
(retired on 24 September 2018) (RZE—N\FNA
“+tMMREM)
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed Roberts, Daniel William %t 3/3 100%
on 10 July 2018) (Chairman, from 24 E(RZZE—NFLAT
September 2018) AEZE)(£E -2
—NFNA=F+IH)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy Wit 4/4 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EBRE A 4/4 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on 24
September 2018), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung,
Alfred and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on 10 July
2018). The Committee is chaired by Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
Directors’ and Senior Management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior
Management; and (c) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the
Non- Executive Director and senior management of the Company.

Two meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:

FMEES

ARRAFHEES([FHEES DR TSS
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+ - 2E R 5 £ X Roberts, Daniel William 5t
(R=ZE—)\FtA+RHEZT)HK - ZEZ
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FINZE ST ERBEFEIRR TS
B (AT EREZTRSREEABRZH
BBCR MR R E S 5 2% ¢ (b) BLERI#
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ERBEALNS2RETERT ZZ#H -
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FRHFHEZESRBTMAEE - FKE D
FEFMEEeeZ BRI

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHH HEBITEERE R
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HERZT(EE) 2/2 100%
(Chairman)
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on FREBRTLE(R_ZE—NFNA 2/2 100%
24 September 2018) ZHHHEE)
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred REREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William Roberts, Daniel William %t 4 0/0 N/A

(appointed on 10 July 2018)
£)
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Chan Ka Kin and all Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired
on 24 September 2018), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on 10
July 2018). The Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Ka Kin.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. During
the year, the Nomination Committee recommended Mr. Roberts,
Daniel William to be appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Board.

REZEE
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Two meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

FRN - RBEEGHBITMADHE - SKE
HEREAEZESSHZBERAEAIIAT

Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of members REHE HEBITEBRE HE =R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum HHEER & 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin PR & 5T 4 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors JFHTES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on REREENR=_ZE—NF 2/2 100%
24 September 2018) NAZ+HBERE)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ke 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred BlEREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on  Roberts, Daniel William 5 0/0 N/A
10 July 2018) E(RZE-—NFLA+ i
HEZE)
No corporate governance committee of the Company has been AABWENIGEERLZES  YHESS
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing HEAEBRTOEETARE £ (a )%\JE&

the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior Management;
(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that
they have complied all applicable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 March 2019,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties or
events which may have a significant impact on the Company’s
ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis,
which contemplates continuity of normal business activities and
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary
course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,380,000 and
fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$191,000.
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The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates such
documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a timely
manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to maintain
formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board Committee
meetings.

Mr. Ip Wai Sing (“Mr. Ip”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company.

Mr. Ip has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company
in Hong Kong at: Room 2303, 23rd Floor, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed

“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
above.

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available to
shareholders on the Company’s website at http://www.sst-holding.
com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not
less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions are always welcomed.

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock
Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and
healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and, where
appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment
surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company
also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using
inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form
of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 on pages 214 to 220 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products, investments in securities and money lending business.
The slimming centres, which are operated under the “Sau San
Tong” and “IPRO“ brand names, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 22
of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this directors’
report.

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019, and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 69 to 227.
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The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the financial statements on pages
144 to 145.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26(a) to the financial statements on
page 176.

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/or such
subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option plans
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable
upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31 HE-_Z—hWhF-A=+—BHLFEEERE

March 2019 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: FEIET o EBREESFBOT
At 31
Subscription At Granted March
price 1 April 2018 during 2019
Date of grant Exercisable period per share R=E-N\% the period R=E-hE
BHiAH T8 BRABE MA—-A ilabh ZR=1+-H
HKS
BT
Directors £% 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — 1.056 2,276,420 - 2,276,420
9 March 2021 (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1 and 2)
“ENF ,2—/\¢;H;I'EI§ (HrF1Rk2) (1 k2) (BF1R2)
=ATH ZE--5=ANA
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 - 18,211,250 18,211,250
30 August 2023 /No‘t‘e 2 ;Novtye 2) /VOI? 2)
—T-)\f “E-FN\fi=t-BE (7] Wito) ()
NA=+-H “Z-=#\A=1H
Chief Executive Officer 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — 1.056 2,276,419 - 2,276,419
THES, 9 March 2021 (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1 and 2) (Note 1and 2)
ZE1F E—NEZATHE WiE1R2) (WE1k2) (Ha1k2)
=A+H —Z-Z-F=ANR
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 - 4,552,750 4,552,750
30 August 2023 /No‘t‘e 2 ;Novtye 2) /VOI? 2)
= G “E-FN\i=t-BE (7] Wito) ()
NA=1+—H “Z-=#\A=1H
Employee (E& 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 - 6,829,250 6,829,250
30 August 2023 /l\/o}e 2) Note 2) Note 2)
—E)\& “Z-\ENA=t-HE Hiz) Hit2) Hit2)
NA=+-H “2-=#\A=1H
Other participant 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — 0.304 - 6,829,250 6,829,250
K28 30 August 2023 /No‘t‘e 2 }Novt,e 2) gNovt\e 2)
“2-)\f “E-FNfi=t-BE (7] Wito) ()
/\H +—H “Z-=#\A=1H
4,552,839 36,422,500 40,975,339
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.056 HK$0.387
METHTERE 1,006 03877
Weighted avera%e of remaining contractual life 2.94 years 4.14 years
MEESRBANES 294 414F
Note: et -
1. The numbers of options and the subscription price per share have been 1. BEREHERERRABEER - —X"FNA
retrospectively adjusted for the Share Consolidation on 23 September —+=H ZHXTV\PH’EHjL/?)}uﬂ*&
2016.
2. The number of options and the subscription price per share have been 2. EREHERTRAEEER T —NLF~A

retrospectively adjusted for the Share Consolidation on 11 June 2019.

T—HZBROAHHELENAE -
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Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Year.

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$396,726,000 (2018:
HK$426,978,000).

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 138 to 143.

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
33(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2018/19 FEH &

Br EXTRERERT 8 — BRI 2 A R BB AR
B EN AEENFAMET LR FERE
Rt o

BIEREHEF2EQNAE(—AN—EE
Pl= EERERIER])  ARAIZBRGHEER
EHBBAUDRTRE- R=_Z—NLF=A
Zt—H AQFADKRFARBERSEEEA
2 FE B4 /396,726,000 T(—ZF — )\ F -
426,978,000 7T) °

rEERE_Z-NF=A=1+—RILEEZ
DEBERENE 138 EF 143 B 2 7 A %R
RMIFE10 -
REE-_ZT-—NFZAZ+—HILFEZLHAE

EM‘%#&E‘%BH&SS( VPR 2 T b BE A LR
U PERGEM ERAMBATZHEER S



The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mui Wai Sum
Mr. Chan Ka Kin

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (resigned on 10 July 2018)
Mr. Takashi Togo

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (retired on 24 September 2018)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William (appointed on 10 July 2018)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Roberts, Daniel William,
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and
Mr. Roberts, Daniel William as at the date of this annual report
and therefore still considers them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 23 to 25.

RERARBEERFHREY  EEEFBEAT
AT

BITES

fBE®RELE
AL

FHITES

KEMEL(R T N\FLATHEE)
RfEL KL

BYFITES

RERAE(RZZE—\FNAZTEART)
ezt

2IEREE

Roberts, Daniel William %cE (A= — \F+
A+HEZT)

RIBANRAHEEMANE 7K - BERLE
X Roberts, Daniel William 5 4 15 7 F& J& A% 528
FREREITI A ERBEIRBEMT -

RAFHRBE  ARRDEEESHZL - 2
{E#2 4% 4 I Roberts, Daniel William 54 5t £ 58
UMBELZFERRE  WINRAKRZHAE
AL

RAFHRAH  ARAEFRAEESRER
ABZBEFBEHNFE23EE25H °
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The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a
discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-
controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional items
of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of approximately HK$307,000 for all of
them for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

FR ENHENEZTRSREEABOFH
B TyIgE

Number of Number of senior

Directors management

EEHE SREEASHE
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 LB 7TE 1,000,000 57T 6 —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 %7 2,000,000 % 7T 2 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 % T 2 3,000,000 7 7T — -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 B 7T E 4,000,000 & 7T - —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 % L ZE 5,000,000 /7T — 1

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

BESEENARANE MM B RRMEILM
RAFRFREAXEREDAFEZETMEX
BHTERARERAEEAES

AEERENERBEREREEEARN - 7
SHHEFZERFARMUEERE - RERE
SERITRE o

RZE—NF=A=+—H ARAEERE
EITBRABREZSEZBMBATRAAGSE
BEEAE (TR R EFRBEERN((EFRBRE
1Bl 1) 88 XV EB) Z B A0 AR B A% 10 ([ A& 1% 1)
HAEESSAR  MAREBESKBEEASE
XVEBETREH AT G ANRD A REERZ AT
(BRREREES KGR GAGR - EER
RABERB 2 EERKR) - HIBIEES
K HR {5451 28 352 7B s IR 1% GEM L 4R A5
546 E 567 (R BMERRNB]RBRAENT
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company: REREGHEBER G ZIE -

Share Option Scheme B E

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from ANTEERD 2 Em KB IBEAR B ERE
share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the STEIRTARRERZBRE - BFFB0T

Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying issued share
shares of the capital
Subscription Company LN
Name of director/ price RAEAT BRITRA
chief executive Date of grant Exercisable period per share HERHZ BmzHa
ES TETRABRE REAH T8 BRABE FREAY BO
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — HK$1.056 2,276,420 0.33%
BRREE —E-REZATH 9 March 2021 1.066 % T
s =
—ZZ-5=AAR
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 4,552,750 0.67%
—E-\FN\A=+—H 30 August 2023 0.3043 7T
- \F\A=+—H=Z
“EC=FNA=TH
6,829,170 1.00%
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 — HK$1.056 2,276,419 0.33%
CEE S —E-R"EZATH 9 March 2021 1.086 % 7T
—E-"F=fAt+RE
“Z--§¥=HANRA
31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 4,552,750 0.67%
—E-\FN\A=+—8 30 August 2023 0.304 37T
- \F\A=+—H=Z
“EC=FNA=TH
6,829,169 1.00%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 6,829,250 1.00%
RRELE —E-\FN\A=+—H 30 August 2023 0.304 /87T
“Z-\F\A=+t—H=Z
“EC=FN\A=TH
Mr. Takashi Togo 31 August 2018 31 August 2018 — HK$0.304 6,829,250 1.00%
BfF LA - \FN\A=+—8 30 August 2023 0.304 87T
- \F\A=+—H=Z
“EC=FNA=TH
Note: /]/715 .

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief MBHFLBAEERMNMS  FlESEBRESENTETR
Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO. AERUEYEERATETAE 278 -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2019, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

B EXREEEN RE-NAE=ZF=+—
H ARFAEF FETHRABNHEEE 25
EATHEARRASHBEEZBE(EERES
RAFEGBIZEXVER) 2 B - Bt sk
RIBBEBRF LRI EI2EREFEZE
ftep o sSARIEGEM E TR RIS 5.46 £5.67
BRRTA ARG ERFETRH  HBIFEEANS
RAB B2 BA ~ Kbk~ & RSk H M
wmIOAR - MAMEARNRA R R o

RZZF-NF=ZA=1+—8 BARFHEAE
EHTETBRAEMAM - THRSREESF R
HEEPIEXVEIFE2REIDEATRE » =&
WRRSEEXBEEGARADHITHAL5%
FUE RATERREESLRPEGRIF
/R EFEZL A ELMIMEARRAE
LI

RERGZIFE -

Number of shareholding

FREE
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERR 54 gl Aok
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 80,550,000 11.79%
AR EmBEAA
H N Group Limited Beneficial owner 35,890,500 5.26%

EHEREAR AT BEmEAA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued share as required under the GEM listing rules
throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date of this
report.

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &

B ENPIEEEN  RZE-—NAF=ZRA=1+—
B BARRESENAEETIRTHRAS(EE
HEREXEERTIRITRAERN KM 2H#
s Ok E =84 BB EM AT RAR R
AN HEROD MMESZF  BERRBES RS
16BI%E 336 1R7E Trosk 2 R BA R o

B EXEERERITRABRED 2 s FR
BIREEN  EMEE AEBAZEBIK
T AR F R S R A B ) A R S A A
NEWEBARRR 2B SESFMED - MKE
TMEITRZ SN BARE - HEkod -
FEERMHBRFRF RN B R RBETLE
M2 R EEFAESTMEMEABEZZ
SR -

ARAEE TEPRIAESFAZHEALCE
&5 GEM LR Bl b M 1 BN & B A5 1 A
R AR REBAE T 2 E P A T -

ARABKEEAHBLARAGERFABE &
Bl gk E RN FHER L WS

BARRLHAABZEMMEENTEARE
Al XREBRFATEHMAM - ARF2RGEM
EARAZRERACBEFEHR M EEARR
SHHSEBBARNARD BTN 25% 2 RE

NRFRE -



Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 26 to 43.

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not have significant events after the
reporting period.

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.00% (2018: 99.90%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 98.95% (2018: 99.78%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 61.21% (2018: 70.98%) of the
total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,640,000 (2017: HK$3,796,000).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003, and the
Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 31 March
2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the committee are
set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the annual report. The
audit committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

ARRIFIFEMZEECRERBRHENE20E
FABEMEZ BEEARE &
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019

Annual Report 2018/19 FEH &

RAREREBHETESF X HRMN —EFNE
BN GEM ETMRAIE S48 E5.6716 2R 5 W
TIRERKEE ZITASTA - ERAMBESE
MR ERE - N AREEMBESFHCET
GEM ETRBIE5.48E 567 KT 2 X 5 W%

ABEBEAMEBMAERATDEREER B
BERYRTREBERRBET - EEKRRBEFX
GLRRE-TFRER  BERXBEE S

EBRERRBBARAZEED

REREFS

HITEF
M ER

B ZE-NFAAZ+HAH



@ * bakertilly
R e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

BEEERBERATR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 227, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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The Key Audit Matter
HRBEZSR

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

B EREE R E R 2 B g

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRNAEESE

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(l)(ii)) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI EIREN T 26) - 20)i) & 13

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of the
Group’s goodwill was mainly allocated to two cash-
generating units (“CGUSs”), namely, the provision of
beauty and slimming services in Hong Kong and
in the People’s Republic of China, which activities
arose from the acquisition of | Pro Medical Skin Care
Centre Limited and Wealthy Sound Limited and its
subsidiaries respectively.

RZE-—NF=A=+—H EBEEEHEZEEHEXE
ShEMEREEFLEM([ReEELESM])  BIREE
Mg ARAMBHIRHERT REBRYG - /O 5IKRE W
BENEZREEERAALEEER AR RENE LG
ZE -

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is
based on the future business prospects and the
forecast business performance of two businesses.
&z AR EMER B AR R RS AT R RN ES 2 RIER
WIEREL R ©

Our audit procedures in this area included:

BRIz B ZEF B

evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used
by the management, in particular those relating to the
sales growth rate and the Group’s pre-tax discount
rate;
AHEEREMERCRERNR L LEREREEER
Xk BEEBEZHAMBEE

assessing and challenging cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates
and comparing historic actual results to those
budgeted so as to assess the quality of management’s
forecasts and judgements;
AEREHEREMREZESRERA  BEFEE
BEBATMT 2 EEBE  URIBBTEREERTE
B URIAEREERARAEG 2 EX
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The Key Audit Matter
HRBEZBR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERENIEEER

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

THEERENA AR (E)

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(I)(ii) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRR A EEBEN T 2() - 20)) R 13 (#)

There is inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are the basis
of the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and,
accordingly, this is one of the key judgemental areas
upon which our audit focused on. There is a risk that
the key assumptions, estimates and judgements on
which the calculations are based are inappropriate
and that goodwill is misstated as a consequence.

& 2 AT B T A PR IR TR SR BEER AR SRR & R 8 AR
BESRTABREE A RRMABZKE T 2 HF —
1B BA 42 2 Er S80S - AR AR BT IKIE 2 BEERR - &
STRAEFIRET TEE - SIBUERRMEE -
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assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including sales growth beyond
the 2020 detailed forecast,
and discount rates used in the model,

long-term growth rates
to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of goodwill;
and

FHEFEAEREBRES CREN  BR_ZE_ZFFMAE
RSN SHER K RABRERRAMARRE - L
HMEEERHEREREE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those
that have the most significant effect on determination
of the recoverable amount of goodwill.
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The Key Audit Matter
HRBEZSR

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables

BURERRAEZ2HERFE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRNAEESE

Refer to notes 2(l)(i), 2(n), 2(c), 17 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

FRHEEFEREEBEIREZMZ20)0) - 2(n) ~ 2(0)

17 % 27(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest receivables Our audit procedures in this area included:
recorded initially at fair value and subsequently IR HE 2 EBZIEFEIE

at amortised cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position. As at 31 March 2019, the
carrying amount of the loans receivable and interest
receivables were HK$89,147,000 and HK$1,042,000
respectively.

SRS R AV EERERBERLAE - fHERRER
B BRRARIZBERAEREREREAE - R T
—NE=ZA=+—H8 BREFREFNEZEEES IR
89,147,000 % 7T} 1,042,000 /8 7T °

~—|I

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed
the Group’s accounting for loan loss impairment
by replacing HKAS 39’s incurred loss approach
with a forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL”)
approach.
FRAAFIEEZAREEBR(FEHEEEEDERX
BREBGHAEBEIF EELEBERN - HKNEE
MBREENEOFENBAR L SEEEEREER
BE2ERTERETE -

obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group’s accounting records;

RIS REME TJA’T;?% 7f*$(@%%ﬁ}?:ﬁz’ﬁ* BRI 5
wE(AE)) YAE & & u+uﬂﬁ2$éé%’5 gl
= - iUHﬂE&ﬁ@éﬁﬂ ;

testing of controls designed and applied in the
process of approving and granting loans, subsequent
monitoring of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

Edt%tt/ﬁ&?*ﬂjfmﬂﬁqﬂﬁﬁ At MOFE R 2 ¥R &
A RRERETNR L EMEFREL

T8

assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology,
the governance for the ECL models, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the ECL;
AHEEAREEZ BRI - BHEEBBRRAZER

EEENAERBEEBERAAZ B AREREBRR
'ﬁ_xﬁ(ﬂ{ ;
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The Key Audit Matter
EREZSR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRNAEESE

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables (Continued)

ERERRASZGERFEE)

Refer to notes 2(l)(i), 2(n), 2(c), 17 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
ERRIRE AT A BFEIREN T 20)0) - 2n) ~ 2(0) ~ 17X 27(a) (42)

The measurement of ECL requires the application
of significant judgement and increased complexity
which include the identification of exposures with
a significant deterioration in credit quality, and
assumptions used in the ECL model (for exposures
assessed individually or collectively), such as the
expected future cash flows and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors.
EHMEEEBEBZABRELEXRAGEEREM B
BAEEEERARBEEEZ AR  REREEEEEXAHM
FERzRER(AREEFHHIARNMEL)  WEARKR S
MERAIERBKEBERRE -

We identified assessing recoverability of loans and
interest receivables as a key audit matter because
the assessment of recoverability of loans and interest
receivables and recognition of loss allowance
are inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

HABRF B ER LA B 2 AT E R — AR
FHERIE - RERHEKE R EF S Z o7 E KR
BEREGAELBIE  WATEEFELEARHE &
BHE SR NRESEEEEE R 2 AR -

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &

assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models and the Group’s criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on
a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;
i EEERBEEEREERAR BE£EFEEER
EREELZN BWESHEERGBRSERIKATAD
EEBBREEFSLFMAEERZ AN

recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;
B EMEER ERAEMA

obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the
borrowers; and

BUSERARE RS RPTIEZ BRER - &

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

BHERERERE  YAETEEEANEERTZEMT
MARBEBHEHRIELTIREBZRE -



The Key Audit Matter
HRBEZSR

Impairment of trade and other receivables

BREWE S RER M EYRE 2R E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRNAEESE

Refer to notes 2()(i), 2(p), 16 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

GBS EFE A S B IRZ N 20)() - 2(0) ~ 16 K% 27(a)
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s trade and other

HK$104,913,000 respectively.
R-ZE—NFE=A=+—H  BEEZEWEIFER
H b & U 2 I8 5 Bl A 194,060,000 7 7T & 104,913,000
PETL ©

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables are
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime
expected credit losses and 12-month expected credit
losses to be incurred respectively, which is estimated
by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue trade receivables, debtors’
repayment history and debtors’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.

FEWE 5 FIA K B B W kIR 2 B R E VIR E R E D
P REEZ KATRBEEBER12EARRAGEEERE
ZIEA(AREREERELR BHNEKREFIREZR
B - B ANERE L MEBAMBRREL ) REE
Al R FERI BB BN TR 2 3T - A LB R ER
RREE NEIRE 2 HIkE -

Our audit procedures in this area included:
receivables amounted to HK$194,060,000 and IR FTEZ B&EFEIE

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness for key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses.

AHEERERIEE  WEBEERETEREEEE 2@
RIS ZRET - BT RKEARIE -

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the report with the relevant sales invoices.
FRERERE HRIARKR RS 2 @RE B EAEEHEE
BE MEAMZRECEERGEDBESHRIRE
o
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The Key Audit Matter
EREZSR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELRNAEESE

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

HHRERE S REREMERFREZBEE)

Refer to notes 2(I)(i), 2(p), 16 and 27(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI EZA A EREZN L 20)0) - 2(0) ~ 16 K 27(a) (48)

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade
and other receivables as a key audit matter because
the assessment of recoverability of trade and other
receivables and recognition of loss allowance
are inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

PRI BT ik FE W B 5 sRIE N L Ath JE W sk E 2 AT e Bl 1
R-EBERESER RARNHEKEZRERE
IR IR B R EREERETEERENFE
M WREERBELEAHE  AMEMREREEE
BRERRZER -

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &

assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year and assessing whether there was
an indication of management bias when recognising
loss allowance.
BRBSEEEMRELZSFHEMERAZEM(BFAR
BEERBE 2 EEL  FAREEBEERENREL
BRAMAELEEHERERE  REERAVBRFE
BEZEREBR  URTERBRABERERIERE
BERREZHTR)  HEEEEBMIECEBERBHTZE
B o

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging management regarding their reasons for
not considering a provision against any unsettled past-
due balances.

EMEREECE YNEEEERARSHAEZEREW
AERBHEHRBERBZRA -



The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

EXAVHMENAE - R ENBRERFRA
HER  BTERGEAMBRR LR
B AR

BRIEHGEEMBREAZEALEREREME
o BRI EREAEA 2 EFER -

WERGEEMBHREME - RAZEEREHE
EXFERCEMER  EMEEEMBERE
DHEEAMBHRAIRMANBZRERTES
BEREEAEMRE - KRB RERBRA -

HEMERCATZ TEHEEMERBEXN
SRR - I PIARESEBER - sty
- B EEAARE 2FHA -

EXAAEREBEELEHMOGROZBEY
RS 2RI BB R AR D] 2 5 5R AR T AR iR
BMBHmE  USHEAMBBRRIELEEM A
FzRBR - WEBERRERGAWBRERA
VEZABAANMEE  UEFEeHBHRERTF
FERREGFERME M 2 EAHRRA -

RRBEAMHEHREE - EFAAN X
BEELEZRN  ARERBRATRERS
BRREFMEE  URERBBERERSF
At MRIFEZAER BEEEBRIFLE
& HPIEEMERZBERTR -

REAREEE BESBZMIERHBIE -
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Annual Report 2018/19 FEH &

BRZEERIBRBGAMBRREE TR
AR ERMER 2 BEAHRRANEE
BEE  URHERRMBERZZBMRE -
ABERERMEBBORRSE © BRULASN - KR
SRR AEREMAR - HABMTRAREZA
BEEMEMALTAREIRETAEREL -

FIEEEBRKTZER  BXIFRELELE
ERERAMET I ERARER X —ERHER
Rz 77 - 88 AR PR AT /R HRRF SR EE AR 1 3
B fin B] BE A& T TR HA B 1) 3K B ARG 2R 2 $H RR IR
AR EEZERAMERRERERBBEYH
WRAEH 2 EERE - BIRREE AR
it o

ERRETEEREAETER —FD > &
MR BEZHEEREXHH L REFFRIERE

J& o FAPITR :

—  ERALHEERKFFRERMEBERE R
BRI FAEERBRFRZ B - REFAL
WITRHZERARZERREF - U RER
FRRMEE ZEBZEE  (EREMABRZ
Eit o ANMFFRIES RER - BE - F
BER O ERRL - SURERAERERE
DR 1t oK BE 3% 3R R BRRF T B 2R EE A A AR PRt
Z BB E AR R AR M EHE AR
A T

— BEREREZAEIAMEE  ARFEE
BRERZERERF  BENLIEY &
SEAIER IRRBERER



— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

o]

—  REEFMRAZ @ RERTEE AR
fEit 2 EEtEH REBRBRT AR -

7

— HEERAFECESITEARETEE
HiEw - WIRFTEZ BREE @ BERS
FEEEHHIFAEEIERNTHAR
= femAstEEY BERBZHELE
EENBREREE - WEMABERSTE
EATHBARE - RIZARZEE RS T 12
E2EMEFIHREV BRI ZEBEE -
HiHEABEETE  AEFTER - HFIE
REBEZHEMHE ARG EXER
BIFHEER o AT - RIREMFGIRR AT BE
Y BEEETHRERLE -

3w

—  HERAMBER(BERBAN) 2B
SHFR - EBRANE - AR A B
KEBARFER2INAX2IEEZI EE
-

— B EEERNERIEBEBIMBER
ERREREE ZEZEE  NHHEEMH
BEREXER - RMAEHES  EEAH
TEEREZ - RfIMEZERAEE2HE
(Ea)

RMEREREETRER  ATAR(HEPEE)
AEEZBERRENREARAEZER B
BPNBZ BB AER 2 AR BEEERR
B o
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2019

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number P06231
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Revenue

— Distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products

— Provision of beauty and slimming
services

— Provision of franchise services

— Sale of health, beauty and related
products

— Results from investments in
securities

— Interest income from money lending

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

(Loss)/profit from operations
Finance costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Income tax expense

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/earnings per share
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 79 to 227 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
HteF

Wz 3
— DIHHE AL EREEM

— REEB LA RS

— REMES ERE
— HERE  XBTMEEER

— BRREXRE
— MEZFEHEA

SHERA

EF

Hiplees 4
H it as sk B8 4
—RRRITHRFAX

R (BR),ER
BERA 5(a)

BREBLAT (B51R) A 5
PSRRI X 6

FRER),EF
BER

RRBVEBA
IRIE R

SR(ER) B 9
— EXRKEE

o e

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
2,365,690 2,422,133
80,753 107,576
852 2,976

3,969 5,381
(40,320) 62,142
12,232 7,779
2,423,176 2,607,987
(2,296,714) (2,362,517)
126,462 245,470
3,212 2,796
2,984 3,724
(84,978) (97,948)
(116,980) (116,783)
(69,300) 37,259
(2,712) (4,382)
(72,012) 32,877
(13,700) (13,771)
(85,712) 19,106
(95,376) 6,439
9,664 12,667
(85,712) 19,106
HK cents HK cents
Bl JBN
(restated)

(g£E7))

(13.97) 0.94

FI9EF 2271 AZWABRGEEMBRET 2 —
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2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Htat FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE) =T (85,712) 19,106
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HREMEE(EE), W% -
for the year, net of nil tax EBBIEZFE
ltems that may be reclassified EgrgeEmnBEBm s A
subsequently to profit or loss: H:
— Exchange difference on — REGINERS 2 BT RER AN
translation of financial EACEHERE
statements of foreign operations (12,351) 18,096
— Cumulative exchange gain — — KB AR EEN
reclassified to profit or loss upon DEAEmZ RFTIERL
deregistration of a subsidiary e 4 (221) —
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HFREMEME(EIE), K
for the year (12,572) 18,096
Total comprehensive (loss)/income HFRAZE(EE) WHELE
for the year (98,284) 37,202
Attributable to: HER
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIEZEN (103,595) 18,694
Non-controlling interests FJEPERE = 5,311 18,508
(98,284) 37,202

The notes on pages 79 to 227 form part of the consolidated BI9EE 227 B W BENGEMBHRE 2 —
financial statements. o o
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Loans receivable

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Current tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans

Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amounts due to related parties
Deferred income

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
W - R
e LUE
A

B

FEUWE K

RBEE
FE

BAFEAABRSZCEREE

R 5 500R

FANFRIR - He REMRERRIA

FEWE TR F B
FEUBEE A LR
A4 EE B AR IR
EEMRITIER
RBekReEFEED

RBAE

RITER

BHAE
T E SR

Hip e s K ERT & A
FEfSREE AL 7R
SEEWA

R E BT IR

RBEEFHE

EEAERADRE

Note
k3

11
11
12
13
17

14

15
16

16

17

18
22(a)

19
20
21
21
18

22(a)

2019 2018

—E-NE —ZT—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Note)

(Ki7)

130,705 138,853
— 8,001

— 410
25,886 26,480
— 40
156,591 173,784
16,240 8,847
113,758 137,899
194,060 323,432
104,913 129,880
90,189 56,187
2 179

2,016 —
7,003 —
391,743 496,482
919,924 1,152,906
— 99,976
20,090 —
12,641 52,983
151,596 132,702
402 16,808

— 16,175
12,144 12,859
196,873 331,503
723,051 821,403
879,642 995,187
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2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FET
(Note)
(Hiat)
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEBIBEE 22(b) 3,888 4,163
NET ASSETS EEFHE 875,754 991,024
Capital and reserves BEARKHE 26
Share capital Bz 109,268 109,268
Reserves 1 751,692 850,884
Total equity attributable to owners of  BREBINAR RIS AELRBEE
the Company 860,960 960,152
Non-controlling interests JEVER R 14,794 30,872
TOTAL EQUITY R 875,754 991,024

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 EEEgR T -NFRAAZTHhERERERE

June 2019. iz o
Chan Ka Kin Mui Wai Sum
R =X 2 ERR
Director Director
EZE EZE
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Wi - AREBERZZE—NFEA—BFEABEN
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not TEMEERFE1SH R BB IEREERIFE I -
restated. See note 2(c). RIBFEZBERE  LREMTEEY - R
F2(c) °

The notes on pages 79 to 227 form part of the consolidated BI9EE 227 B W BENGE M BRE 2 —
financial statements. =5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ - — N F=A=1+—RHILFE
Expressed in_ Hong Kong dollars) (B4 )

At1 April 2017

Changes in equity for 2018:

Proftfor the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Expiation of ofher liabiites

Appropriation to the PR statutory surplus
1esere

At 31 March 2018

HZE-tERA-R
ZE-NEZRRSE

R
AEnE

EREEALR
2LEEER

BibELE
Bakk

H-§-N22A=t-8

BT S

Note
i

Attributable to owners of the Company

i’t'/—\ji&g\'

w3

BENALTREA
Share- -~ The PRC Retained
based  staiutory profts/ Non-

Share Share Merger  Exchange  payment surplus Other ~ (accumulated controling Totdl
captd  premium 1esene 1esene 1esene 1esene 1esene losses| Tod inferests equiy

HEEE B/
BE o BORE  oBBE  ENRR RONERR  BRER AR (ZER) 8% hhEE  EeiE
HES000  HKSO00  AKSOOD  HKSOMD  HKSOOO  HKSUGD  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOD  HKSOO0 RSO0
i g TR B TR TEE fh BT TET fhT T
100268 778605 (3637) 74 20 13,691 11,611 012 9148 12364 93882
- - - - - - - 6439 6439 12667 19,106
- - - 1225 - - - - 12265 5841 18,0%
- - - 12255 - - - 6439 18,604 18,508 31,20
- - - - - - 16444 3506 20,000 - 2,000
- - - - - 209 - (2994 - - -
- - - 1225 - 2994 1644 7001 38,604 16,508 57,202
100268 778605 (3837) 11,781 200 16,685 2,055 i %6012 ez %9102
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A1 Apr 2018 Ho3-N5RA-E

Changes in equity for 2019: ZE-NE2ERSE
(Loss)proft for the year Ep(ER)/ 80
Other comprehensie loss Ef2EEE

Totd comprehensive oss)income for the year £M27 () /g

Equiy-seftd sharebased ransaction. - EAEERANHRS
Aopropiaton o the PRO satutory surplss~ BT REET

resene BhEE
Diidend paid o non-controling nterests 23RS 2ke

At 31 March 2019 RE-7EZR=1-R

Note

Attributable to owners of the Company

The notes on pages 79 to 227 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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SRHANTRRL
Share- ~ The PRC Retained
based stafutory profits/ Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Exchange  payment surplus Other  (accumulated controlling Total
capital ~~ premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve losses) Total  interests equty
HELE REEA/
Br RBEE  cHRE  ERRR BBARRE  BERE  AMER  (EHER) of  FEREE  BE4E
HESO00  HKSO00  HKSOO  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSOOO
ot i i T i i R R R T
109268 778,605 (3,637) 11,781 200 16,685 26,055 778 960,152 02 991,04
- - - - - - - (95378 (95376) 9664 (85712
- - - (8219 - - - - (8219 3%y (1257
- - - (8219 - - - (95,376 (1035%) 5311 (98,264
- - - - 4,403 - - - 4,403 - 4403
- - - - - 3,282 - (3,26 - - -
- - - - - - - - - (21,389 (21,39)
- - - (8219 4,403 3,282 - (98658 (9192 (16078 (115,210)
109268 778,605 (3637) 3,562 6,625 19,967 B0%  (B148 860,960 e 8757
BTIEF222T AZWHABRESUBRER 2 —
5 -



Note
k=3
Operating activities RETEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrR&LRT(EB),m A
Adjustments for: AT A%
— Interest income from money lending — FU& 2 A2 WA 3
— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial — BRAFEGFABRZERH
assets at fair value through profit BEZATEEE (I
or loss, net = )R8 3
— Bank interest income — |RITHBUA 4
— Cumulative exchange gain — —EMBARHEER
reclassified from equity to profit EnEMoBEEEs
or loss upon deregistration of a ZEHE K UEs
subsidiary 4
— Other interest income — EMF EWA 4
— Dividend income from listed equity —— FHRAESZ R EWA
securities 4
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — HE—HMBAR W 4
— Net (gain)/loss on disposal of — LEWE - EBEREREZ
property, plant and equipment (Wz) BB 55 4
— Finance costs — BB 5(a)
— Amortisation of intangible assets — EREEME 5(c)
— Depreciation of property, plant and — % - #E KR ETE
equipment 5(c)
— Impairment losses on trade and — FEWE 55K R H AL IR
other receivables, net SKIBRBEEEF5E 5(c)
— Impairment losses on loans and — BREHREFEZ
interest receivables BIEEBE 5(c)
— Write off of property, plant and — M - BB RERE
equipment 5(c)
— Write off of trade receivables — WEEEE 5HFIR 5(c)
— Write off of other receivables — HsEH A E U RIR 5(c)
— Write off of amounts due from — HiSHpE YRR E A T 5RIE
related parties 5(c)
— Write-down of inventories — WiEEE 5(c)
— Equity-settled share-based payment — #Ezs4E E RN ZFTA
— Net foreign exchange loss — EHEIBFE
Operating (loss)/profit before HEESEBHATZ
changes in working capital T (BR)BF

2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Note)

(Ki7)

(72,012) 32,877
(12,232) (7,779)
41,488 (20,111)
(1,985) (2,3006)
(221) —
(1,097) (195)
— (215)

(193) —
(344) 1,396
2,712 4,382
410 1,410
18,645 19,793
5,806 2,477
4,578 —
461 —
2,233 —
435 3,080
166 1,333
568 553
4,403 —
197 1,882
(5,982) 38,577
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(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in loans and
interest receivables

Decrease in amounts due from related
parties

Increase in contract liabilities

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accrued charges

Decrease in deferred income

Decrease in amounts due to related
parties

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
HK Profits Tax paid

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &

Note
HtaF

FE M), md

BAFEAABGEZEREE
(), mid

FEUE 5 RER D, (3E )

B - 28 RERER
SO D
MR8
CE0),/ D
FEARERE AL HE

BHAEEM
ENESRAECHD),
Hib AR N ER B
g0,/ CRd)
EFE WA R D
FERBAE AN T RIR D

RE/(AR)REEBZRS

BB REAEH
ENEBHEN
EUH B

B R

®E (AR REEDZ
BE 38

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Note)

(Mat)

(8,558) 964
(17,347) 21,958
106,145 (54,268)
17,213 12,407
(38,478) 4,105
— 1,404
20,100 —
(36,944) 9,953
26,890 (10,629)
(15,852) (8,124)
(15,193) (25,056)
31,994 (8,709)
(13,181) (9,680)
(3,036) (9,698)
14,502 11,003
— 215
30,279 (16,869)




Investing activities

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Net cash outflow from assets
acquisition

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment to a director

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid on bank loans

Interest paid on broker’s overdrafts

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Note
k3

REED

B RITERIEM
BEWE RS R FHE

31
BEME  #EAREBIAR

HEME - WENREZ TS
FRIE
HE R B AR ZERIA 32

RARBREEB 2R FR
BMEED

EN IR RS 2 B

¥IBIRITE R Z PSR
m—2EEEK
ERRITER
ERRITERZHE
ENELEIZHE

(AR),/ REMEEFDHZ
REFE

2019 2018
—E-nE  —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Note)

(Ki7)

(7,003) —

— (15,920)
(12,977) (8,127)
1,306 789
8,500 —
(10,174) (23,258)
(21,389) —
93,528 99,976
— (20,016)
(187,056) (74,982)
(2,712) (3,618)

— (1)
(117,629) 1,359
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2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZT—N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FEx FET
(Note)
(B15t)
Decrease in cash and cash HeRASEENRD
equivalents (97,524) (38,768)
Cash and cash equivalents at REAzRHEEES
beginning of the year ZEY 496,482 522,045
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exge o HE
change (7,215) 13,205
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERZEER
of the year BEeEEY 391,743 496,482
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018. Hiat - REEBER -_Z2— N\ENA—BVLERSEHN
Under the transition methods, comparative information is not restated. TR FE 1558 L BRI SRS LR E IR -
See note 2(c). BIEABBERE  hREBTEES] - BHE

2(c) °

The notes on pages 79 to 227 form part of the consolidated FTIEF 227 B MABRRA M EHRE 2 —
financial statements. 2R o

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have been
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. On 18
July 2018, the principal place of business of the Company
has been changed from 16/F., Prosperity Tower, 39 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong to Room 23083, 23/F.,
China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong.

(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

EEEERBRAR(ARTNRIEE
—HFRAZT-HRBERESHEFE2E
REVE(—NA—FED = - 8456 RkiE
FEHERSEMRLARREBRA
B MERNE=ZZZ=F+—A+NA8
BREBHEZZIEER AT ([HAF])
GEM £T77 »

RAARIANHSHEARE  Eafks
BE{SZ 72 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands - R =Z— \F+
A+N\B  RRARZZLXMHEHEE
FIREFREFIORLERAEXNE161E
ERREETIREHEF 141 5P REE
ARE 23182303 % °

(a) BHIEH

BE_Z-NF=RA=+—BILHF
BZHRaBEHRRBRARTRE
B AR (i AL ) -

ZEEREMBBRRCREMAER
BEUMBREEAN(BERBRS
BRI WRTEEEABSIMAE
((&ERgtMAg DRMZMEE
FEREAYHRELR BEE
AHEA(TEAGTER ) R2E)
AR ARG RAIREE QBRG]
ZEBRERE - ZFHEEBTHR
RI A RZFIGEME 7 LT
AI(TGEM LR A ) 2 8 A% 5 5
X o

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provided information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial instruments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), derivative financial instruments and investment
property are stated at their fair values (see notes 2(f),
2(g) and 2(h) respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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(a)

(b)

BHIRAE)

BEGMAGERMRNAEER
ST EIE B R AR A IR F IR
ZETHIMRETERMBRE
R - HfaE2(c) iR BB B KRS
ZFRAEH L RE S HRE
AR URZEHEAMBHREK
AT AR AR N i 1 & Rt I S X
SEERZENBR -

REMBRR ZEREE

RESAEMBHREGEBZEE
EREERAREE  HEARKRR
FEFAER(EATFEGT AR
mlremEEZSRITE T4
CRITAREEYMENALATE
HIBR (9 BI R EE 2(F) 2(g) & 2(h)) °

RENEFTEYHRELR 2E

MEHRRFEEEEFELAE - &
it R R - MaxFHE - Bt RR

REFEBRZIEANUREE - A
B RARFAXZEREE - &ZF
fmat RAERERR BB TLRLE
TRBATHEBRE ZHEM
AEMEL - HERBREEERL
HppRRFRSR/EZEERARE
FREE(EL M 2 £ - BRER
AIREEZ FAET TR -



(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HK(FRIC) 22  “Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration”

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 38).

(b)

(c)

REMBRRZEREE(E)

Bt hEERREFERS - WE
HAEFHERTE R EZ MR - AIRE
FIEFT IR ER - RIHIETZER
N B HIM - RUBMERT 2 B &
Hi& BRI RER

EEEREAURSHRAMB@REK
BEAFEZEBMBRE LK
tER Z H BT A R A st TR R 2
T E2RRRMIFES7 fmat

B ERZED

BEGMAGERMEEMBR
SEARAREA ST HEERE
M2 ZBERTARZ AT ER -
RZEFERET  UWTHRERE
BiraMBEHmRAR

ERUBREEN [2RIA]
Bl

BEUBEREERN  [REAHMA]
F15%

BH(ERMBRE  [IMNERF KRB
REBZE®)- RE]
F005%

ANE BB R R A2 5 EI R
R A AT Bl e e R (BB R
38) °
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. It introduces revised
guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model
for measuring impairment of financial assets, and new
general hedge accounting requirements.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 April 2018 in accordance with
the transition requirements. Any cumulative effect of
initial application is recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at 1 April 2018. Therefore, comparative
information continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

() Classification of financial assets and liabilities

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at
(1) amortised costs, (2) FVPL and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income. The
classification for financial assets is determined
based on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
has assessed that its financial assets measured at
amortised cost at 31 March 2018 continue with
their classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018.
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S BRER 228 (E)

EENBEHREEREINZ B
TA]

BRAMBHRELFEIRMAEL
SETERIZEIR SR T A - R
Kitgl - HAFHERmTARE
DRNETE FEZRMEEREZ
MEMEEBERA R —RY
HEFHREZEERTIESI

RIFBBERN - AEBEEEPER
BEVBRELRAFIRENR-F
—NFOA—-HBFEZERE - RZ
Z-N\FOA—RB YIXERZE
MBFATERERLSEHNER
FE - Bt LBRENBERES
BEATERIEI9REHH

) EHEERBEZDE

]

EEMBRELENEIOREA
TREEZ=HEX2oH:
(MIZEHKA ~ QLA V1A
AR RQEAFERA
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ZHBRNEREREESHE
EZEBRANZEEZEN
RenERMmET - A&E
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS
9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVPL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s credit
risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or
loss). The Group does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVPL and therefore this
new requirement has no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Credit losses

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss model” in HKAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the “expected
credit loss” model, it is no longer necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure either a 12-month
expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. Further details of the Group’s
accounting policy for credit losses are set out in
note 2(l).

The Group has assessed that the adoption of
the “expected credit loss” model to the financial
assets that existed at 1 April 2018 has had no
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial position as at 1 April 2018 and its
consolidated financial performance for the year
then ended.

(c)

B BEZEB(E)

EBUNBHREERFINR B

TAJ#E)
() Z=HEERBEZSEE)

(i)

FREVHREERFIREAT
TRABZNBRFTERER
EREHERER A L
REFTE EFBEMBERE
HAFORRERNEMBER
S EERBREEMEBIEER
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ 2 ERAE

NHEZE  ARHEMEEK
sAER(TAIENDRER
&) o ANEE YN EGEFEFE
EREATFEFABEZEZR
BE - WAL HHREHAN
SEEAMBHRRLBETE -

=EEER

BBV BREERFINH 2
BERAUTBEREEREIE
XM BB S ERIF 395
BT ZIBEEEAEE IR - &
BIEREESBIES 82
BEEEEREHIERRE
BB - Ak BRARTEE
UREERBERERNTEE
HEEEEA12EALEHE
ﬁ%%%mﬁ%%@ﬁ%%o
AEEEEBEIECR

—HEFIBERHIEE2() ©

AEEDFHLRBA AR
T \FOR-AFEZEE
RN FEMEERR IRAER
SER-_ZFT-N\FHA—BZ
RAMBRRALBEZR LF
BEZHEEUBRRILBEKRE
@,
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BTBERZ®EE(E)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with EEUBHREERFISHEFE
Customers” HIHA ]
HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive model for ERPBERELEDE1SRETER
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts EPAHBARETRAZ ZEE
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 X o FEAEMERELEDFE155EA
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the BB ERE 18] BF
related interpretations. SETERFE 1R EEEHIRIEE
B -
HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and BB RELEBFE 1555 A58
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to INEMRTETERHZERT  BEED
enable users of the financial statements to understand BHRERFRE THMEFPAENMESE
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue ZWHEABREREZHE - £5 -
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. R M HEE M ©
() Timing of revenue recognition () e fERIFE

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the BIEEEME®REERFEAS

customer obtains control of the promised goods 8 W IR EFPIISA LM

or service in the contract. This may be at a single EGEEY SRS 2 15 B R

point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the R BEMRAENE KA

following three situations in which control of the oy EREEEmETT - &5

promised goods or service is regarded as being B 7 R 45 2 BN 55 15 5% 3% Bl

transferred over time: EGEEM SRS 2 AR A

BERMIEE 2 AT =EER

— When the customer simultaneously receives — EBEREPNEBEERBAER
and consumes the benefits provided by the BHEXLEAEREY
entity’s performance, as the entity performs; Frigft < Mz

— When the entity’s performance creates or — EEEBAEAIEIE
enhances an asset (for example work in R P (BEEN IR Z
progress) that the customer controls as the BECK)FESCEE
asset is created or enhanced; (tnfEgET )

—  When the entity’s performance does not — BEBEARIYEAE
create an asset with an alternative use to HEEBMS EERAR
the entity and the entity has an enforceable LEBEE BZEBHLE
right to payment for performance completed STERZBHNNRAR
to date. AIITHER ©
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these three situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for
the sale of that goods or service at a single point
in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of
the indications that is considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

The directors consider the adoption of HKFRS
15 does not have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
years presented in these consolidated financial
statements.

Customers’ unexercised rights

Previously, any unutilised prepaid packages upon
expiry of the service period are fully recognised
in profit or loss. Upon the adoption of HKFRS
15, such unutilised prepaid packages are referred
to as breakage. An expected breakage amount
are determined based on the Group’s historical
experience and are recognised as revenue in
proportion to the pattern of prepaid packages
utilised by the customers.

Having assessed the utilisation of customers’
unexercised rights, there is no significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial position and
its financial performance upon initial application at
1 April 2018.

(c) EFERERz225H(E)

BEBUBHEEREISHEFE
WA (&)

()

(i)

Y 7 HE RIS ] (#8)

WA KRR L BERESL T B
REFZE=RER - BIRE
FEEYBRELENF55
B RN K — 5 R B (BE
HIEE R ) S E ' MR
BHER W e - FTA R & Bl
BEBBEANEEEFEE
BHRER/{ERZEP I

2o

EEARRMNEEMBRES
15 ENZFHEAMBERER
2 FEER W 2 FE R E
BYBEATE -

EEARITRZEF

iE - HARERBENERE
AR 75 B Ja m 1R 0 18 25 S B
B RMBEABYBREF
Bk ZFERERBENERIA
(ERI25 - BHIERS®ER))
BASEBERREE @ Wik
EPERBANERZRAZL
IFER -

RHEEFPERKRITEENZ
MK - WEHAEEN_-F
—N\FOA—-—BYTEAKZ
RAMBIRRLEEBKREX

=24
2
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

(iii)  Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right
to consideration. If the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(x)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the
promised goods and services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is classified as a
contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable, is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

Previously, contract balances relating to unutilised
prepaid packages were presented as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position. To reflect these changes in presentation
regarding the balance at 1 April 2018, the
deferred income of HK$16,175,000 is now
included under contract liabilities (see note 20).
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

(iv)

Disclosure of the estimated impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the year ended 31
March 2019 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
15 on 1 April 2018

The following tables summarise the estimated
impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019, by comparing the
amounts reported under HKFRS 15 in these
consolidated financial statements with estimates
of the hypothetical amounts that would have been
recognised under HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 if those
superseded standards had continued to apply to
2019 instead of HKFRS 15. These tables show
only those line items impacted by the adoption of
HKFRS 15:

(c) EFERERz225H(E)

BEBUBHEEREISHEFE

WA (&)
(v) RER-F—/NFAH—HAEF

REAI B ERRE 155
SRYBE-F—NF=A
=t AULEEEREEZ L
e

TREBLLEIRIEE BT R
ERBBISHEREZEREY
BREPERZ SHEHEBRIE
BB GTEAFE18TH RE 11
RERZHARESE(NR
CE-NFEEEAZSHE
AR IEE I 15 3R 22 R
EA55%) - MR B B
HEEDFEISRY A EBHE
E-_ZT—AF=A=+—HI
FEBRAEMBRRZEFTE
2. ZENREBTIEMNE
B BREENFEISRTE
ZIEH :
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BTBERZ®EE(E)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with EEUBHREERFISHEFE

Customers” (Continued) HIYA (&)

(iv) Disclosure of the estimated impact on the (iv) WER-ZF—/FPH—HF
amounts reported in respect of the year ended 31 MEBYEREERFE 1655
March 2019 as a result of the adoption of HKFRS BHHEE T —NF=H
15 on 1 April 2018 (Continued) =1 —HIFFEZHEEIIG

i E(E)
Difference:
Amounts Estimated
reported in Hypothetical impact of
accordance amounts adoption of
with  under HKASs HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 18 and 11 on 2019
(A) (B) (A) - (B)
B3
RZZB-NEH
REEE BESHENE maEE
BBHE 18R BBHRE

ERHIFE155%E2 F1HEET ERIFE155
BeeE ZBREHE PACEE 7

(A) (B) (A) - (B)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Line items in the consolidated R=ZE—-HAE=ZA=+-Hz
statement of financial position  HZAFHRREPZHEH
as at 31 March 2019 impacted  BHHBRESERE15%
by the adoption of HKFRS 15:  F&21EH .
Contract liabilities aHAE 20,090 - 20,090
Deferred income B A — 20,090 (20,090
Line items in the consolidated HEZZZE-AE=ZA=+—-Hi
statement of cash flows for FEZGRASHRERTER
the year ended 31 March 2019 @B BHBREEDE 155
impacted by the adoption of HEJIER
HKFRS 15:
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEM 20,100 - 20,100
(Decrease)/increase in deferred  EEWA(FL),/
income 0 (15,852) 4,248 (20,100)
The significant difference arise as a result of the BAEMEA LS HRE
changes in accounting policies described above. Mz A °
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(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration”

This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of the non-
monetary asset or liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt should be determined in this way.
The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
position and its consolidated financial performance for
the year then ended.

(c)

BIERER 228 (E)

BB ERUBHEERBREEE)F
22 5[ SR G RAENCE ]

pRBAREEIXHEH] Bk
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TR KB 2 5 5 )5 R AE
EE - X RBA (RS ) B A
Az ER
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(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(l)(ii).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

(d)

(e)
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(e)

(f)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(l)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at FVPL for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. The explanation
of how the Group determines the fair value of financial
instruments is set out in note 15.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are subsequently recognised in
profit or loss if the investments equity securities
measured at FVPL does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (recycling).
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(®)

(9

(h)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(B) Policy prior to 1 April 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL.
Any attributable transaction costs were recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value was remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives quality for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedge the net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged.

Investment property

Investment property is a building which is owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(k)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

()
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(h)

(i)

Investment property (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(K)),
and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are
accounted for as described in note 2(k).

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 2(z)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (except for
construction in progress), less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Land and buildings Over the unexpired term of
lease
10.0% — 33.3%

10.0% — 33.3%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures
Office and computer 10.0% — 33.3%
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of

Leasehold improvements

leases (whichever is

shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0% — 33.3%

No provision for depreciation is made on construction

in progress until such time when the relevant assets are

completed and put into use. Construction in progress

is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,

plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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0

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(l)(ii).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease, with the following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(h)); and
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(k)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment property
(see note 2(h)).
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o

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including trade and other receivables, loans
and interest receivables, amounts due from
related parties, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents).

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including financial assets at FVPL and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to
the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive), discounted at
the original effective interest rate, where the
effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs which result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of these financial assets. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

For other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial asset since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that
are expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on
the financial asset assessed at the end of
the reporting period with that assessed at
the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held). The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument;
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the

technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to

the Group.

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Subsequent recoveries
of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery OCcurs.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(x) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have occurred.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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()  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) N EEEEREEREE)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () Z2BITAZEEERE(E)

(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 A B=ZZF-NFHH—H
(Continued) REEHZ B ()
Write-off policy B R
The gross carrying amount of a financial WA EER A Y E
asset is written off (either partially or in B - AEEEHEE(EB
full) to the extent that there is no realistic NEBE)eMEE IR
prospect of recovery. This is generally the HEE ZBELBATR
case when the Group determines that the KEBETESALE
debtor does not have assets or sources of EETEREREZ
income that could generate sufficient cash BEEFWARIRAEERE
flows to repay the amounts subject to the AT 2 RIERT HER o
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was LRIMEc EERBE
previously written off are recognised as a W - R 7E W [ HA R
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the B RERARERD -

period in which the recovery occurs.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () EEEFEREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () ZBITAZEEERE(E)

(Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 B R=ZFE-NFMHH—H

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment
losses on financial assets not classified
as FVPL (e.g. trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, loans and interest
receivables, amounts due from related
parties, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment included:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor or borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— the Group, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender
would not otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the debtor or
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor or borrower;

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost; or

observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial
assets in the portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the
portfolio; and

(2) national or local economic
conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)

If any such evidence existed, the impairment
loss was determined and recognised as
follows:

— For trade, loans and other current
receivables, the impairment loss was
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting was
material. This assessment was made
collectively where these financial assets
shared similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and had not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)

If any such evidence existed, the impairment
loss was determined and recognised as
follows: (Continued)

—  (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease could be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
was only recognised to the extent
that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor,
borrower or other financial assets
carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote,
associated impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group was satisfied that
recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written
off against the gross carrying amount
of those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in
profit or loss.
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
(Continued)

If any such evidence existed, the impairment
loss was determined and recognised as
follows: (Continued)

—  (Continued)

Impairment losses were written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of
trade receivables, loans and interest
receivables whose recovery was
considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts were recorded
using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against
these financial assets directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt were reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly were recognised in
profit or loss.
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o

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

[f any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that are not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measureable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they
are classified as current assets, or if not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(I)(i)).
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(0)

(p)

(a)

Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from
loans granted to borrowers in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of interest receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(l)(i)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(l)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 2(l)(i).
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(a)

()

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Overdrafts with banks and securities brokers that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2(x)). A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2(p)).

In the comparative period, amounts received before
the related services was rendered were presented
as “deferred income” and the balance has been
reclassified on 1 April 2018 as shown in note 20.

Deferred income represented contractual billings/
amount due in excess of recognised revenue resulting
from services yet to be rendered or in respect
of the unexpired terms of the relevant contracts/
arrangements, or for which the applicable revenue
recognition criteria were not yet satisfied. Revenue was
recognised and deferred income was released to profit
or loss when the relevant services were rendered or on
a time proportion basis over the terms of the relevant
contracts/arrangements, or when the applicable
revenue recognition criteria were satisfied.
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®

(u)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially

at fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing

borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any

difference between the amount initially recognised and

redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over

the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.
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(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories at the end of
the reporting period.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity.

The Company operates a share option scheme
under which the Group receives services or goods
from its directors, employees and other eligible
participants as consideration for share options of
the Company. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Binomial Lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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(u)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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(v)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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(v)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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(v) Income tax (Continued) (v) FBsiE)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution DR BETE S 7 BEINPT S TR T
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the RENEBRBE 2 BERFER -
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and EHBIRASR EERIB AR R
movements therein, are presented separately from each ETRE2HEa oMY RTEEHE
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset i - MAEEB S AR MITE
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets FMAEBHIEEERIHE BHHRNIES
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the & WHEATHSGRE - E8%
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets HEEMELERIBEEEF S HIK
against current tax liabilities and the following additional HEMNMEBEABERELEHIBERE

conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, — DENHBEEENBEMES -
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, REEFERFHEELELH
or to realise the asset and settle the liability HEHNSEREERSERE
simultaneously; or B9

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - BEEHEEERAEMS
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same WEZEEERBERR —MHBK
taxation authority on either: MEABLA T Ep —IEBUR 2 FT

SHAR -

—  the same taxable entity; or — [RA—ERTEE X

— different taxable entities, which, in each — TRAERARBEE Mz
future period in which significant amounts of EEROEERERER
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected ERMIEBERENEEETT
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise BE W E 2 FE KRR
the current tax assets and settle the current HE - stERFEEAE
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and SHERRBBEERE
settle simultaneously. EEHHEBEE  HF

R ETT IR SB(E
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(w)

(x)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, rendering services,
interest income from money lending in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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(x)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products and the sale of health,
beauty and related products are recognised when
the customer takes possession of and accepts
products. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts. In the comparative period,
revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products and the sale of health, beauty
and related products were recognised when
goods were delivered at the customers’ premises
which was taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services is recognised over time in
proportion to the stage of completion of the
service contract. Revenue is also recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the contract liabilities
and deferred income upon expiry of the service
contract.

Franchise fees income
Franchise fees income is recognised over time in

accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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(x)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 2(1)(i)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets and liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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(y)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the
acquisition of foreign operations acquired on or after
1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.
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(aa) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(if)

(i)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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(aa)

(ab)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale REBEFEXBRADHEBEE LML EE

of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and Eohc REHERNEERE  IBENBE
slimming services, provision of franchise services, sale of ERRTS « HERE -  ERRMEBEER &
health, beauty and related products, investments in securities HFIRERREMHMERET -

and provision of money lending business.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied WamismEPIRHEE R AN - &
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or B OEETSEMEER ERE  RE
other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty RHEAREERSHEITNZR&EY
and slimming services, net of discounts; franchise fees A MBEEEBIA ¢ ARMEZEEHER
income and interest income earned from the money lending ZHRBIWA - TR RINZHERZ2SEE
business. The amount of each significant category of revenue Watanesmu T

recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E=-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care % #5851t & E B E &
products 2,365,690 2,422,133
Provision of beauty and slimming services 12 {2 & 4 82 iR 75 80,753 107,576
Provision of franchise services REMBEIERT 852 2,976
Sale of health, beauty and related HERRE - EANEEER
products 3,969 5,381
Interest income from money lending WEZFBUA 12,232 7,779
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at ZAFEFABZZERHEEZ
FVPL, net NFE(ER), W FHE (41,488) 20,111
Realised gain on financial assets at FVPL, ZAFEzFABRZ SREEY
net EE R F 1,168 42,031
2,423,176 2,607,987
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2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Other revenue H iz
Bank interest income SRITHR S WA 1,985 2,306
Dividend income &% S WA — 215
Other interest income H 4 F] BULA 1,097 195
Others HAtb 130 80
3,212 2,796
Other gains or losses Hih ==l B8
Subsidies from the PRC government PR B R AT A A 2,421 5,114
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - WEREHEZ
plant and equipment Wezs(E518) 38 344 (1,396)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MERBAR Wi 193 —
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified BeEEM —RM B A RER
from equity to profit or loss upon MEREFHEEERL
deregistration of a subsidiary RETE S 221 —
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain PE N (E18), W= TR (197) 6
Others Hh 2 —
2,984 3,724
Subsidies from the PRC government represent funds and B R T A B FE M S BT A s AN EE [E 2
subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s TR N EKEEIRM 2 Ee KmEiL -

development and business activities.
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(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived after charging: BRELAT(E518), SR BB T8

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(a) Finance costs: (@) BERL:
Interest on bank loans IRITERZFE 2,712 3,618
Interest on other liabilities HEmadEzFe - 763
Interest on broker’s overdrafts BHRBEZ 2FE — 1
2,712 4,382
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRK(BRESHMH
remuneration (note 7)): (BtaE7)) -
Salaries, allowances and other e R EEMET
benefits 78,920 91,808
Contributions to defined contribution FEHEFTRRETE 2 HR
retirement plans 11,166 11,740
Equity-settled share-based payment BRnEEROTRAX
expense 3,578 —
93,664 103,548
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(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

(Continued)

(c)

Other items: (c)

Cost of inventories sold and services
provided®
Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Net provision for impairment losses
on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— loans and interest receivables
Write-down of inventories
Write off of:
— trade receivables
other receivables

amounts due from related
parties

property, plant and equipment

Equity-settled share-based payment

expense for a consultant
Operating lease charges: minimum
lease payments

Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes

Hawigg :

EEFERERHRE 2
A

BN B

B EE#H

WE - R RRETE

BERBERETE

— FUE SR
— A RESHRE
— R RS
3477
i
— EUE SR
— HiESHE
— BB A+ H0E

— WX - ERRE
XN TERSESEEK
(GENE-NH3
REHEER  REHEE
Bk

HK$961,000 (2018: HK$1,204,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each of

these types of expenses.

BREAT(EE), S8 M E MR TS E :
(%)

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T&T
2,296,714 2,362,517
1,500 1,372

410 1,410
18,645 19,793
541 2,475

5,265 2
4,578 —

568 553

2,233 —

435 3,080

166 1,333

461 —

825 —
28,784 28,999

EEGFERERERBZAAREEHE
THRA R E Z961,0008 T(—ZF— N\
F 11,204,000 70) * ZLENRESEZ
EHX 5 B aT A £ sk M FE5(b) B L i R
Z IRRALEEE -
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(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) &r

represents:

2019 2018
ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax  EHHiE — FBAEH
Under provision in respect of prior years  BEFEEENE 1,441 2,548
Current tax - PRC Enterprise Income EH%iE — PELE
Tax Fris
Provision for the year (note 22(a)) FNEAE (I 7 22(a)) 12,244 11,223
Under provision in respect of prior years BT FEERENE 15 —
12,259 11,223
Income tax expense FriSfif X 13,700 13,771
() In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government i) RZZFE-—NF=H BBEMA

BRBERAZHIER

introduced a two-tiered profits tax rate regime

by enacting the Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 3) Ordinance 2018 (the “Ordinance”). Under
the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, the first

HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of qualifying

corporations is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining

assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The

Ordinance is effective from the year of assessment

2018 - 2019.
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21 ) (35 ) R BI(T &1 1) 5l
AR BB RARS - RIEF B
MR 68K AFANE
2,000,000 7 7T F& &% Bt '3 F)
128.25% T Bt + MeR T A FERR
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(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$NIl) as the Company and subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong have either no
assessable profits for the year or have sufficient
tax losses brought forward to set off against
current year’s estimated assessable profits for the
year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
relevant countries.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors or companies incorporated in Hong
Kong or for other foreign investors, respectively.
Pursuant to the grandfathering arrangements
of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable by the
Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect of the
undistributed profits derived prior to 31 December
2007 are exempt from the withholding income tax.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax
that would be payable on the unremitted profits
of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January
2008 as the directors of the Company is in a
position to control the dividend policies of the
PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

RABmRRNZHIEAKE - (B)

(i

(ii)

(%)
HE_Z-—hF=H=+—H
HFE  TEZREEFNESH
TIREBECE-NF: T
TT)  TTHERAR B RNEE
A SZ Y B B A B R
|ERTUR A SR B HBIE
BB AT E NG E
B

BINMEB AT 2 IR AEE
RIMIT B E R R HI -

RIBFETOE - AEERHE
ZHBAE (T ENERE])
—EEN\F-A—BEEL
2 MBR RSN E F A
FBEMMIL 2 AR HREAMID
BEEEDR&EFEMNE - D
AR 5% K 10% Bt K F R Fa 0
PRSH - IREBPEBEZRR
FOERRB L - AEER =
TELF+_A=1+—HAE
B2 R TR ) W B
NAElZ B RBIRINFAEN

RoB-NER-F—N\E=
A=+—RA BRARAES
B2 R E I B 2 )2 IR BB

BRFEHPEMBLEANARL
KRN EE KA @Dk -
B ERPEMELRE-F
TENF-A-—RARELEZKE
H A A 2 B IR R R AL AR
ERIEEE -
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Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)

accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before
taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to (loss)/profits in the
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Under provision in respect of prior
years

Others

Income tax expense
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BT (E518), g

BB (1R), 2 £ 5%
BB REAREMRE
B2 (B1R),/ ) 2Bt
it

RENRAX B

BERBUN 2 B HE

ARREBER LB E

U oo o

AERRB AT AR B2
B g

BABERERREBRL
MG

BEFERENRE  FHE

Hitp

PRSI

PIEHAX B ERREFE LS
HOER), sz B

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(72,012) 32,877
(10,436) 7,571
11,558 6,978
(3,446) (10,496)
1,546 (929)
10,877 10,238
(81) (2,139)
1,456 2,548
2,226 —
13,700 13,771




Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing Rules are as

follows:

Executive directors #iEz

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirey FEART(N-F-1£
(resigned on 6 September 2017 ARARER)

M. Mui Wai Sum iRz

Mr. Chan Ka Kin RARzE

Non-executive directors FHTEE

Mr. Takashi Togo Y Eawitd

D Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley FIARL(N=F-NE
(resigned on 10 July 2018) tATEER)

Independent non-executive directors FuH{7EZ
M. Hong Po Kui, Martn FEYRE(N-R-NE

(ieired on 24 September 2018 AAZTHRRE)
M. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ikia Lo
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Afred Yensk

Mr. Roberts, Daniel Wiliam

Roberts, Daniel Wil 74 (3
(appointed on 10 July 2018) “5-\ELATREZH)

RIEE B R B EH] 25 383(1) ik »

~ A (3

BEENHZEMBROIFE2HRGEM £H

HARE BEEHBMT -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no director waived

or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments

were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and ~ Retirement scheme  Equity-settled share-based
Directors’ fees benefits in kind contributions payment expense Total
Ezhe b RRRENNE Bl ERGERINAER &
2019 218 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z%-1F 50 Z3-ME B0 ZE-AE ZE-0\E ZB-AE BB ZR-AE 3
HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00 — HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
At TEr A TEr B TEr fEr AT TR TEn
- - - 1,308 - 8 - - - 1316
- - 360 360 18 18 550 - 928 318
- - 360 206 18 10 826 - 1,204 215
240 240 - - - - 826 - 1,066 20
- - 864 1,595 6 10 - - 870 1,605
15 Rl - - - - - - 15 Rl
85 50 - - - - - - 85 50
120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
81 - - - - - - - 87 -
547 440 1,584 3,468 & 4% 2,002 - 4375 3,054
REBEZEZEZE—NF=-A=+—HBLFE
N REEEHEARBRREMAME -
REBNEAARAREE X MEAME -
TERINASAS INAZR R B 2 22 Rh ok Bt BB
e -
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TasEeFALH —R(ZFT-N\F:
—H)REF HMFBERME7H
BEommu(ZT-N\F  mO8)ALZ

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2018: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

other four (2018: four) individuals are as follows: & BRI T
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments FehEMmiNe 7,123 7,137
Retirement scheme contributions RORETEIE IR 69 72

Equity-settled share-based payment AR IR GO N RFZ

expense 1,376 —
8,568 7,209

ME(ZE—N\F: OB)KSFHFA LM
BN TFIHE

The emoluments of the four (2018: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2019 2018

—2-nE -\

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

HKS$Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z %7t E1,000,000/8 7T — 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 % 7T ZE 2,000,000 % 7T 3 2

HK$2,000,001
HK$3,000,001
HK$4,000,001

HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,000
HK$5,000,000

2,000,001 87L& 3,000,000 /57T -
3,000,001 B JLE 4,000,000 %5 7T -
4,000,001 87T £ 5,000,000 % 7T 1

RBE_Z-NAF=ZA=1t—RHILFE
A AREBEINHE T ARRESH
AL EREMASEIMAREE 2 12
B SRR (E

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest
emoluments of the Company as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is BREAESR) BIRFANBERA

based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company AR A AE1E# 95,376,000/ L (= F
of approximately HK$95,376,000 (2018: profit of — J\%F : % #16,439,000% 7T ) & B # 1T
HK$6,439,000) and the weighted average of approximately I iE A% DN S 9 8 49 682,926,000 (=&
682,926,000 (2018 (restated): 682,926,000) ordinary shares —\F(HEF) : 682,926,000) iz 5T &
in issue during the year, calculated as follows: N
2019 2018
—B-hE —TN\F
000 000
FR FAR
(restated)
(#5E51)
Issued ordinary shares at beginning of the REYIEBETERR
year 5,463,408 5,463,408
Effect of share consolidation on ZE-NEFERAT—HERHE
11 June 2019 (note 36(ij)) OF 2 & (H172 36(i) (4,780,482)  (4,780,482)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares R 7 & @A INFE FHE

at end of the year 682,926 682,926
As the Company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary HERARFREZE_TE—NFR TN
shares during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, FoA=T—BULEFEYEEETES
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same. LR MEREAREE(SER), BT

EIE
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Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s
financial information mainly from business lines prospective.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products

(v)  Investments in securities

(vi)  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of reportable segment
results. This measurement basis excludes certain other
revenue, other gains or losses, finance costs and unallocated
expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, current tax recoverable and other assets that
are managed on a central basis. Segment liabilities mainly
exclude current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.
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EEEDRIEEFEHNAAELREIER
EZREBERLEDH - EFTBNET
RARRNAKREZTBER - At - &
SEZEEDER

() DHEEECHEEEE®

(i) REEBRAERE

@iy MBEEER(BEMINEAESH
HERE EARMEBER)

(v) SHERRE XBRERE®

(v) BHERE
(vi) E

%%?ﬁﬂ%%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ LR S B
ZRB - GTEEETBEE THMKES -
HitWamsk B8 - wﬂéﬁﬁiﬁ&iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ
i o]

N

DHEETETERETYE  HIELR
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(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Disaggregated by timing of ZEZUABHES

revenue recognition
Point in time
Qver time

Reportable segment revenue
Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

(Reversal of)/provision for
impairment losses on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— loans and interest
receivables
Write-down of inventories
Write off of;
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— amounts due from
related parties
— property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of intangible
assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

HEER

BERK

HAER
R

EnER
AEFE(ER)/&%:
- BRERRA
- RHENAE
- ERERRME

R
i
- BiBEAL 3

- 0F - RERSE
ERAERE
0% BERRENE

() 2MXE - BEREE

2019
Z3-0E
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic ~ Provision of health,
and skin  beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
PHHE HERR
Rk REZRR e ELI
#RER SERY L3S HBER RERE HE &%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr 7Er FEn
2,365,690 - 244 3,725 1,168 - 2,370,827
- 80,753 852 - (41,488) 12,282 52,349
2,365,690 80,753 1,09 3,725 (40,320) 12,232 2,423,176
23,258 (39,969) (2,760) 3,487 (45,122) 6,200 (54,906)
(14,394)
(69,300)
2,712)
(72,012)
(18,700)
(85,712)
(332) (1) 874 - - - 541
- 5,265 - - - - 5,265
- - - - - 4,578 4578
- - 568 - - - 568
- 2,233 - - - - 2,233
- 435 - - - - 435
- 166 - - - - 166
- - 461 - - - 461
- 410 - - - - 40
948 11,538 288 - 2,084 72 14,930
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(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Disaggregated by timing of H%ZUABHES

revenue recognition
Point in time
Qver time

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

(Reversal of)/provision for
impairment losses on:
— trade receivables
— other receivables

Write-down of inventories

Write off of;
— other receivables
— amounts due from

related parties

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
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WE-ERE
RZEH

Lyl

BERK

CLED
FEREX

Epil

HEER(BE)/ B

i
i
- BhBEAtHE

ERERE
Nz BERRERE

(a) 2WXE BERAEEE)

2018
“E-)\E
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic  Provision of health,
andskin - beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services operations products in securities lending Total
HHEE HERE
bk REERR e EY
REEM HRRHK afExH BBER EFRE i af
HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
AL &L TEL FEL FEL AL AL
2,422,133 - 3,047 2,334 42,031 - 2,469,545
- 107,576 2,976 - 20,111 7,179 138,442
2,422,133 107,576 6,023 2,334 62,142 7,119 2,607,987
48,311 (62,866) (8,241) 1,483 58,088 7429 54,174
(16,919)
37,259
(4,382)
32,877
(13,771)
19,106
(296) (914) 3,68 - - - 2,475
- 2 - - - - 2
- 217 - 26 - - 553
- 3,080 - - - - 3,080
- 1,333 - - - - 1,333
- 1410 - - - - 1410
780 13,869 264 - 1,611 - 16,524




(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets PHEE
— Property, plant and - % BERRE
equipment
— Other assets - AtEE

Unallocated corporate assets APEAREE

Total assets EEfE

Segment liabilties AHER

Unallocated corporate AARAAEE
liabilities

Total liabilties [EE

Additions to segment non- S HERHEERE
current assets

(@) 2WXE -EEREFB(E)
2019
Z®2-NE
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic ~ Provision of health,
and skin  beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
PHEE HERR
Lk  REZAR e EZIN
REER L BfEER RBER 2508 & G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FEr FEr Fér Fér FEr FAT
3,422 20,041 82 - 5,336 576 29,457
268,890 156,371 4,370 3,405 384,043 124,253 941,332
105,726
1,076,515
(138,152) (34,021) (8,676) (570) (69) (151) (181,639)
(19,122)
(200,761)
1,772 6,885 - - 3,672 648 12,977
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(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets HHEE
— Property, plant and - % BERRE
equipment
— Intanghble assets - BVRE
— Other assets - BhEE

Unallocated corporate assets AAEATEE

Total assets BEEE

Segment liabilties NBEE

Unallocated corporate FAELRER
liabilties

Total liabities AfEeR

Additions to segment non- ~ HEIFRHEERE
current assets
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(a) 2EEE - BERERE(E)

2018
T\
Distribution
sale of Sale of
cosmetic ~ Provision of health,
andskin - beauty and beauty
care slimming Franchise  and related  Investments Money
products services operations produots in securities lending Total
HHEE HERRE
HHE  REEER <) S \
EEED BERE afekH HBED ErE fife et
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T AT AT AT 7T T
3,042 26,178 396 - 3,979 - 33,59
- 410 - - - - 410
430,883 141,089 1,212 2,757 454,666 120,849 1,151,516
141,169
1,326,690
(275,309) (28,256) (10,433) (471) - (138) (314,607)
(21,089)
(335,666
1,173 5,031 - - - - 6,704



(b)

(c)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers

and information regarding non-current assets by

geographical locations are as follows:

Revenue from external customers
Non-current assets

Revenue from external customers
Non-current assets

Major customers

SNERE P 2 W s
FRBEE

SNERE P 2 MR
FRBEE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were
two (2018: two) customers with whom transactions
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue. Revenue
from distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care

products to these customers in the PRC is set out

below:

Customer A
Customer B

EPEA
=FB

(b)

5 E B

AEBEINBEP 2 WE R BREIER
BEEZERMEBIIDMT

(c)

2019
—EB-NF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
HE BB &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FAET FAET
2,384,133 39,043 2,423,176
6,074 150,517 156,591
2018
—E-)\F
The PRC Hong Kong Total
A BB At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FEIT
2,465,593 142,394 2,607,987
12,266 161,518 173,784
FEEF

REBE-ZE-NAF=ZA=t—B1t
FE - ME(CE-N\F WR)E
FPZRBEAEEURER10% A E -
[ 5 B3 P 20 5 3 btk o o
EEmZ WS T -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E)\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TFrET
981,021 863,042
361,409 854,940
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx =& iEfEY Y LA T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS e SRR A l

11 Property, plant and equipment and 11 Y% BERBRERKREYE
investment property

Fumiture  Office and

Land and and  computer  Leasehold Motor  Construction Investment
buildings ~ Machinery fitures  equipment improvements  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  property Total
1 FRR  BAER g

RrgF B8 ERRE  RERE 3% RE  HRIR N RENR &t
HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKBOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOO  AKS0O0  HKS000
T&r T Tr Tér T T#r Tr Tér T 1T

Cost or valuation: ARekE:

A1 April 2017 AE-tERA-H 94,241 24,49 6,667 10,004 60,009 16,144 445 213,99 8,001 221,930
Exchange adjustments EjRE - 797 24 285 283 1,046 48 5175 - 5175
Addtions hE 16,812 1,704 108 49 3067 2,056 - 23,939 - 23,939
Disposals it - 2,019 (187) () (3,629 (2.251) - 8,899) - (8,855
At 31 March 2018 AE-NEZR=T-B 110088 24841 6,812 10,008 62,786 19,1% 493 234,188 8,001 242,189
Representing; #:

Cost i 110,083 2484 6,812 10,008 62,786 19.1% 493 234,188 - 234,188
Valuation b - - - - - - - - 8,001 8,001

110,058 2,841 6,612 10,008 62,786 19,195 495 234188 8001 242,189

At 1 Apr 2018 R-Z-N\EMmA-E 110053 24841 6812 10008 62786 19,195 93 234188 8001 24189
Exchange adjustments [k - (509 (184 (183 (198 (679 /I - (3,484
Additons KE - 5,143 20 102 5,031 2,401 - 12077 - 12077
Disposals il - (0,185) (691) 1234 (1528 (297 - s ]
Write off s - - - - - - (461) (461) - (t61)
Disposal of asubsiciay ~ iE-HEA - - - - (340) - - (340) (6.001) (8341)
At 31 March 2019 RoE-AE=RzT-8 10088 2,29 6,047 8,693 50,309 17971 - 218369 - 21339
Representing; f:
Cost s 110053 20,26 6,047 8693 50309 1797 - 330 AV IRK
Valuation [oE - - - - - - - - _ _
110053 20,26 6,047 8693 50309 1797 - 330 EVIRK
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Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 Apr 2017

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2018

At 1 Aprl 2018

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on dlsposals
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 March 2019

Carrying amount:

At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

ZitfiE:
N-E-+FRA-H
B

ERfE

HERRE

N E-NEZA=1-H

NE-NEZA=1-H

BEE:

R-E-NF=Azr-

RZE-N\EzA=1-8

Fumiture ~ Office and

Land and and  computer  Leasehold Motor  Construction Investment

buildings ~ Machinery fitures  equipment improvements  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  property Total
1 FRR  BAZR i

REF BE EREE  SHRR MR RE  EEIR Nt REME &
HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
7Er i A 74 71 i A 7ér 71 i
2950 19,944 4539 1575 34,200 9,274 - 18488 - 78488
- 602 156 230 2,034 102 - 3724 - 3724
3,084 1,06 687 830 10726 2,860 - 19,793 - 19,793
- 2019 (180) (716) (1,763) (1,992 - (6,670) - 6.670)
5,084 20,183 5,202 7919 45,208 10844 - 95,38 - 95,33
5,084 20,183 5202 7919 45,208 10844 - 95,38 - 95,33
- @ (119) (149) (1,580) Ly - (2722) - (272
339 1892 605 706 9,031 3,061 - 18,645 - 18,645
- 9,185 (891) (1,282) (14,746) (2.495) - (28,549) - (28,549)
- - - - 45 - - ) - (45)
9374 12423 4791 7,44 37,863 10963 - 82,664 - 82,664
100679 7873 1,250 1449 12446 7,008 - 130,705 - 130,705
104,069 4,658 1610 2,089 17,583 8,351 493 138,853 8,001 146,854

The land and buildings and investment property are situated

in Hong Kong under medium-term leases.

T REFURKRENFUNEELRE

R AEA -
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Website costs

Uk R A
HK$’000
FET
Cost: AN :
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and RZE—+FWPWA—AH -
31 March 2019 —=-N\F=A=+—H"
“E-N\FMA—HK
—E-NF=A=+—8H 9,783
Accumulated amortisation: RatEe .
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FHEHA—H 7,963
Charge for the year FREEH 1,410
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\FE=ZA=+—H 9,373
At 1 April 2018 R-E—N\FMNA—H 9,373
Charge for the year FAEEE 410
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 9,783
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—NF=A=+—AH -
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-—NF=A=+—8H 410
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “general FAZHEHEBRGFAGEERRZ
and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement [—RITHASZ] -

of profit or loss.
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Cost:

At 1 April 2017
Exchange adjustment

At 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2018
Exchange adjustments

At 31 March 2019

Accumulated impairment:

At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018,
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019

Carrying amount:

At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

B

R-ZFE—tFMA—H

BEE 3 SR EE

R-ZE—NF=ZA=1+—H

R-ZT—N\FOA—H

P SR

RZZE-NAF=A=+—H

RETRME :

RZE—+FWMA—H -
—E-N\F=A=+—8"
—E-NFHA—HBK
—E-hAhF=A=1+—H

FREIE :

RZZE-NF=A=+—H

RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—H

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies as set out in note 2(e).

HK$’000
FET

25,990
511

26,501

26,501
(594)

25,907

25,886

26,480

BERWME20e) ez AKESE
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
identified according to country of operations and business
segment as follows:

Provision of beauty and slimming services 32t ER M2
— Hong Kong (“Unit A”)

Provision of beauty and slimming services REHEA R
— PRC (“Unit B”)

Money lending — Hong Kong WE — &F

Multiple units without significant goodwill

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates
for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 16.8% (2018: 20.8%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is
based on the Unit A’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the
fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business in the
current economic environment in Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &

R — BB ELAD

R# — HEI([ELB])

BEEABMEZZMEEM

AN

RAERRTE  HRECEREBERS
REASEZORERSELEM (RS
EEER)  SEBHBOT

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET TET
16,564 16,564
8,407 9,001
595 595

320 320
25,886 26,480

EFERBEBEAGERFEICHREER
BEERMBHEREE -

BNA

B AZAIWEEZEREBETERE
BE o W EFERBEREEEDZE
LN BEEEL 2R RETEA -
hFHLAE 2R &M EE AT TS
BEERI%(ZT—/\F :3%)HE - It
EREVNBBEMAEEMS 2 KRBT
HEREER - HEREN16.8% (ZF—/\
F:20.8%)BEIREALIR o FTERARM B X
ARNBHEARREEHEENAZERR
% o BEFEFEZZHMEEZREEBIE
ERHHERAZBSRA/ RLEETEE
ARG ERENABTEENEEEY
TMSEERVETEBHABLEERERER
NSRS X T5 R B 2 TEHA o



Unit B

The recoverable amount of Unit B is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). This growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rates
for the market in which Unit B operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 20.6% (2018: 24.2%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to Unit B. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which included budgeted sales, such estimation is
based on the Unit B’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development including the
fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business in the
current economic environment in the PRC.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable
amount.

BB

BBz E&BRERBENERE
BE o W ERERBERREEEDZE
ZhERNBREEELE 2RESRETEA -
REHNE 2B REFE ARG MEFY
BREIW(ZZE—NF :3%)HEH - It
WRERYABBEMNBEENS  REF
HEER - REREMN20.6%(ZF—N
F:24.2%)BK IR EALI o FRERARLIR X
ARMBRBIEIRREEBEMB 2EBR
% o BEFEREZEMEERBEBIE
HBEHHEAZBEERA S REEEER
ARG ERENBBEXEENEEEY
TSEERBETFRERBLEERENESR
NGRS 2 T8 -

BEERA TAZERJ/ZAEAEED)
BT @EEReELFENU  RMEBGE
AU E SR o
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(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HEUBMRARAZEERRE :

position comprise:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Merchandise K 16,240 8,847
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as o) HEREAIWITABRITESS
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DT -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZERAE 2,273,917 2,331,306
Write-down of inventories FEME 568 553
2,274,485 2,331,859
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REB 2 ERAESR(Hita)
(note a) 92,269 116,271
Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong R &S 2 3E Al AR (& 5
(note b) (Mtetb) 12,182 11,911
Unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong ~ &ESEINZ IEETRAE S 9,307 9,717
113,758 137,899
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(a)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had financial assets
at FVPL representing equity securities listed in
Hong Kong of approximately HK$92,269,000 (2018:
HK$116,271,000). Details of significant investments are

as follows:

(@ REEBZLTRARZ

R—_ZE—AF=ZA=+—8" &
EEBREAFEFTABZZE R
BE BEREBZLTRAES
#792,269,0008 L(ZF — J\ & :
116,271,000 7T) - ERIREFIE
R

-1
Percentage
of total
issued share Market value  Percentage
capital at the end of tothe  Fairvalue Gain/ Dividend
Stock  Name of investee Number of ~ owned by the reporting Group’s  gain/(loss) (loss) on  received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period total assets  for the year disposal the year
REER HEHE  BRE FAAYE i3
BE HERAR% wmg EEEE b/ hE/  EAREK
Rt #REARAR B3R RitgE  HERH S e i (%) ) ke
000 % HKS$'000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
74 Tén f&n f&n 77 fén
8101 EJE (Hong Kong) Manufacture of custom 21,728 1.67% 17,738 36,363 3.38% (42,350) - -
Holdings Limited made furniture, the (note) (note)
design, manufaciure Wz W)
and sale of mattress
and soft bed products,
property investment,
securiies investment
and money lencing.
ERER(FANE  HEREZA & 4ER
RRAT HERSHRRED  WF
RE  EARERNE -
1082 Hong Kong Equcation  Provision of private 20,000 3.65% 20,318 19,000 1.76% 7,200 - -
(Int) Investments educational services, (note) (note)
Limted Investment in securtes, W) W)

property investments
and money lencing.
FHEERRE  RELAMRRR RER
SEARAT # DERERME
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(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) MEBZLTRAERE)
2019
281
Percentage
of total
issued share Market value  Percentage
capital at the end of tothe  Fairvalue Gain/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number o~ owned by the reporting Group's  gain/(loss) (loss)on  received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period total assets for the year disposal the year
FEER HEHE  (BRE FALYVE i3
KE HERmRs Ang  EEAE hi/ hg/  ERN
RS RREARAR IERH Ri#E  HERH S e i (&%) (F8) BEE
000 % HKS 000 HKS'000 % HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
74 &1 &1 &1 &1 741
1087 InvesTech Holoings ~ Design, development 32,500 2.31% 5,200 9,425 0.88% 4,225 818 -
Limited and provision of
communication
system, as well as the
manufacture and sales
of signal transmission
and connectivty
products.
ARERERAT b FERREEAZE
WREERAE GG
REkEm
1587 Shineroad Provision of food ingredients 10,000 147% 6,771 4,800 045% (1.971) (236) -
Intermational and food aatives to
Holdings Limited food manufacturers.
THEARARER  MARIEARERREH
N RARENE
1591 Shun Wo Group Foundation business 11,20 1.93% 13441 6,563 0.61% (6,878) (2,507) -
Holdings Limited of construction of
residentil, industrial and
commercial buildings.
INZERRERAT BEET IZREXET

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &

JHERH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 58 8350

LTI

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

(a)

e MR ERR M

15 BAVEFABRBZEREE

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) MEBZLEHTRAZRE)
018
E-NE
Percentage
of total
issued shere Market value ~ Percentage
capital at the end of to the Fair value Galn/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of ~ owned by the reporting Goup's — gain/{oss) losson received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period  fofal assets  for the year disposal the year
REER ReHE  (1EE EMLTH i
e BREARE ris EEGE ha/ hw/  ERRR
KORE REELTLR 1235 KhgE  HEIA A EE i (B8) (&%) BiRE
000 % HK8 000 HK$000 % HKS 000 HK8 000 HK8 000
i TET i bz 7En Tér
8101 EJE(Hong Kong) Manufacture of custom 21,728 1.67% 17738 78713 593% 51,219 - -
Holdings Limited made furniture, the (note) (note)
design, manufaciure (&) )
and sale of matiress
and soft bed products,
property investment,
securfies investment
and money lending.
EREn(ERIER  EERREA b ERE
BRA ERSAEKER  DER
1082 Hong Kong Education ~ Provision of private 20,000 3.65% 20,318 11,800 0.89% (16,018 7,964 -
(Int") Investments educational services, (note) (note)
Limted investment in securtes, (&) ()

SHIRERIAE
135

property investments
and money lending.

RILAHERE £E2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx A FERASN - HLABITYIR)

15 Financial assets at fair value through profit

e PR wR M

15 BATVEFABBZEHEE

or loss (Continued) (%)
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@) MEBZLTRAERE)
218
3-)E
Percentage
of total
issued share Market valug ~ Percentage
capial at the end of fo the Falr value Gain/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investee Number of ~ owned by the reporting Group's  gain/{oss) losson received for
code  company Principal activities shares held ~ the Group Cost period  fofal assets for the year disposal the year
REER ReHE (1% EROVE i
5 SEEARE K EESE ME/ W/ EREM
RS BRELAER 1235 RAgE RN i EE tfi (E8) 13 ) Bks
000 % HKS'000 HKS000 % HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000
7 mE T mE o T T
1591 Shun Wo Group Foundation busingss 50,000 1.25% 53% 7,300 0.66% 1905 - -
Holdings Limited of construction of
residentil, industrial and
commercial buldings.
THEEARERLT BT IEREZETC
HARR
8351 Larry Jewelry Design and retafing of 20,600 0.57% 1622 5,768 0.43% (1,854) 256 -
International jewelry products and
Company Limited sales of pharmaceutical
and health products.
KABRARERLT RARBEREER REE
BENRRER

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ & Z#ZRAEMRA A
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(a)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (a) MREBZLTRAEFHE)
2018
F-)E
Percentage
of total
issued shere Market valug ~ Percentage
capital at the end of to the Falr value Galn/ Dividend
Stock ~ Name of investes Number of ~ owned by the reporting Group's  gain/{oss) losson received for
code  company Principal activities shares held — the Group Cost period  fofal assets for the year disposal the year
REER ReH8  (1EE ERLTVE il
BE  GREARE Ais ERGE ha/ hw/  ERRR
BORE HRELTZR 1235 KhgE  mEIN A & it (&) (&%) Bike
000 % HKS'000 HKS$'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
i AT AT T#r AT T#r
8120 China Demeter Feedstock products and 20,000 201% 1980 2200 0.17% 300 - -
Financial animal husbanalry
Investments DUSIngsses, money
Limited lending business,
securiies investment
business, food and
beverage business
and provision of
administrative services.
HECRRARRAR BHERRENEE HEZF
% EFREEH Am
BHEBRIEHEERE
Note: Investments costs in these investee companies represented Hiat - Rz EWIIRE RN R 2R B R A1)

the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The
investments in these investee companies were made by
the Group in prior years. For that part of investments in
these investee companies which were made in prior years,
it was subject to fair value gain/(loss) was recognised at
the financial year end of the respective years. The fair value
gain/(loss) of these investee companies for the year ended
31 March 2019 and 2018 excluded fair value gain/(loss)
being recognised in prior years.

BB ZEREE QB ZKA < A
SERBEFERZERZE QT
EHERE - RNBEFERZSFH
RERAMER ZZ AN REMS -
ERNEFEMBRFELAERAERA
TEWRE(BE) - #=E-_T—Ah
ERZZE-NF=ZA=T—HIHF
B ZERRERFZ AP EWR R
JER)TREBEFERRBZA
FlEdE (BE) o
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(a)

(b)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined
based on the quoted market closing price available on
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the
end of the reporting period.

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 18 April 2016, the Group subscribed unsecured,
three-year maturity 2% coupon convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$12,000,000 from Deson
Construction International Holdings Limited (“Deson”), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds has:

i) an option to request Deson to redeem the
convertible bonds by the Group at its principal
amount outstanding together with all accrued and
unpaid interest at the date of redemption on 17
April 2019 or the occurrence of other conditions
as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreement; and

ii) an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of Deson at the conversion
price based on certain conditions on the date of
conversion as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with abovementioned
options, were designated as a financial asset at FVPL
and recognised at fair values.

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &
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(b)

REBZETRERS(E)

FHARAES Z A FEREHFHAR
B 2P EMR K GEM 5 T R (EE
ﬁo

REBZF LT ABRKRES

RZZE—ARFHEA+TNH " A&EE
mMEERBBREEEGRAE([#
E(BXFGEM ET AR ) RE
EER-—FHRE 2% 2 REKE
% AR&%/412,000,0008 7T °

AEB(ERFTHBRKRESFHE A)E

5

) AEERREBER_T-NF
MA+EBIH S RERE
TR IR 2 B IR 1 35 AR
fERl T & S5 A S B A KR FT
B RAREN B Z &2
54

i) RERERKRBBHEIRE
WERE TR REREEN
EREG A RRESER S E
A REE -

AR 4 R R B B R
AFEIAREZ SBAE - BB
ATFERER -



e B 7 kI8
B EE R

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowance

Deposits biogcia
Prepayments AN
o Ath fE Y GRIE

Other receivables

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits amounting
to approximately HK$29,214,000 (2018: HK$40,816,000),
which are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses after more than one year. All of the other trade
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts
due from slimming business partners and consultants of
approximately HK$67,039,000 (2018: HK$64,807,000) and
advances to staff of approximately HK$368,000 (2018:
HK$1,346,000).

Certain trade receivables of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$38,304,000 (2018: HK$222,396,000) is
pledged to secure banking facility.

2019 2018

—B-hE —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#7 FHTT
200,414 329,571
(6,354) (6,139)
194,060 323,432
16,408 17,034
16,379 33,796
72,126 79,050
104,913 129,880

ETAREE 2 H 4 EWRTE - BHAK
BERkEeAES RARKEREAMIRE
© #929,214,000/% (= T — N\ F:
40,816,000/ 7T ) + TEEIR IR —F &I
Bl R AR o ATEHMmEKE 5IE
Ko EL Ath JE U R TE TE HA R — AR Uk (9] R FE AR
RFEX -

T AR E 2 Hh FE R IE R FE W B 5
%R R B R 2 5RIE 67,039,000 7 7T
(ZZ— )\ : 64,807,000/8 L) M\ B
T 8t 2 FIE#1368,0008 T(ZT— N\
4 11,346,000 7T) °

REE R E T REYKE 5 KIE 4 38,304,000

(= 2 — J\ £ 1 222,396,000 7T )
BN ERETRE -
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(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDMT

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing REMER - EUWE FFTIE(ERNE
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date SHHRRNIBRERER) 2Rk
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: HronT s -
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Less than 1 month P 1{EAR 184,423 318,990
1 to 2 months 1ZE21E A 7,342 1,902
More than 2 months but less than ZR2@MARBRLR4EA
4 months 999 1,607
More than 4 months but less than ZR4@AELH12{EA
12 months 1,296 60
More than 12 months 128 A A £ - 873
194,060 323,432
Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days JEWE 3B — AR AR
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s 30EQ0HEE - REBEEERZ
credit policy are set out in note 27(a). E—AFBHRWE27() o
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The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the
money lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
and interest receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.

AEBERKERENEBREBREEER
FTARAZEMBARIZMEXBEL -
AEBRNBEREREREERKER R
MENEEREEERR EEETHE
B8 A A R

2019 2018
“E-hF —TN\F
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXB FEHS @t EnEs Me#dn @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Loans secured by HAER
personal guarantees ZEHER 10,554 1,024 11,578 13,723 83 13,806
Unsecured loans BEEBER 82,839 350 83,189 42,093 328 42,421
93,393 1,374 94,767 55,816 411 56,227
Less: loss allowance - BERE (4,246) (332) (4,578) - - -
89,147 1,042 90,189 55,816 411 56,227
Represented by: TIPER R :
— Non-current portion ~ — 3EENERZR7 - - - 40 - 40
— Current portion — AEE S 89,147 1,042 90,189 55,776 411 56,187
89,147 1,042 90,189 55,816 411 56,227

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
5% to 48% (2018: 10% to 42%) per annum and repayable
on maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.

EREFAFRENFEEZ48E(ZF
—N\F:10EE42E)FFE - HEARE
BB ERNE A SREAEEERE
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(a) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due

dates:

Neither past due nor
impaired

Less than 1 month
past due

1 to 3 months past
due

QOver 3 months past
due

SN
AE

BE M {ER
BH1=3{EA

BHBE3EA

(a)

AR D 7

ERNANEHAZREKD

M

2019 2018

“E-nF —T-)N\E

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
RS2 RS @zt RS MEE 7 @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FHT
68,282 230 68,512 55,816 351 56,167
- 327 327 - 49 49
249 415 664 - 11 11
20,616 70 20,686 - - -
20,865 812 21,677 - 60 60
89,147 1,042 90,189 55,816 411 56,227

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that

are neither past due nor impaired has been assessed

by reference to historical information about counterparty

default rates. The existing counterparties do not have

defaults in the past.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out

in note 27(a).
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BE 5 380 2 Ko 7 S ORUE B W B R K A
BREEXECE2REWETFEY
RESLERETRIG - BRI T

BEREELD -
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2019 2018

—E-NF TN\
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Amounts due from: FEYGRIE -
— related companies (note (i) — BERRI (K 0) - 177
— a holder of non-controlling interest — JEIERERITE A 2 2
2 179
Amounts due to: JERTROA -
— a director (note (i) — —REE(WZ36) - 562
— a director of a subsidiary (note (i) — —[MBRARIz—RES
(K&t (i) 402 —
— a holder of non-controlling interest — FERESFEEA - 16,246
402 16,808
Notes: Biat -

(i) Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over
these related companies.

(i) It represents the amount due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley was the non-executive director
of the Company till 10 July 2018 but still acts as a director of a
subsidiary at 31 March 2019.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

At 31 March 2018, the bank loans were repayable within
one year, and secured by pledge of certain trade receivables
of the Group (see note 16) and personal guarantee by a
director of a subsidiary.

Details on interest rate profile of the Group are set out in
note 27(c).

(i) ETMBARESHZSEMEQRESR
EVN-Z Pl

(i) HEENREMELZLHE REMEL
REEARRZIFATERE_T—\F
tA+TR R _FT-AF=ZA=+—
B RIVEEMBARZES -

R SR BB A EHE AT - 28
RARESEE -

RZZB-NF=A=+—H  RITEKEA
R—FREE  WALHRAEEETEK
BHRARMFEI6) L—HHBARZ
—BEFZEAERELR -

s

BRAEE 2N =GR FBESNMT
27(c) °
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31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
ZB-AFE T )N\F ZIZET)N\F
=B=+—H WA—H =ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET FAET
(Note)
(K17z)
Receipts from sales of prepaid KEHEBENERTERHD
beauty packages A 20,090 16,175 —
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative Bt  AEBERBRFZEELEREREEM
effect method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 April 2018 FEREERFASHEI R — N\ENA—
and, accordingly, an amount of HK$16,175,000 was reclassified HAR & - Eitk - 16,175,000 7T
from deferred income to contract liabilities. EREERAENDBEESHNEE -
When the Group receives a deposit before the service AREERRSHBERIWEUIRESE - S48
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the NEEAYBEELE IR IRIGAEFTHE
start of a contract until the revenue recognised when services RS FBIBIRENEREAIE - AEER
rendered exceeds the amount of the deposits. The Group BUH—FTEHENIZS  WYEEE SR
typically receives a certain deposit, which is negotiated RS ESE RIS OBTE -

on case by case basis with customers, on acceptance of
slimming service contracts.

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as BHEEZEEHBMmT
follows:

HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FHEOA—H 16,175
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRERER S EE
recognising revenue during the year that was ZENEEZRDTIR
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning ~ F¥it AB LN E &
of the year (15,852)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of RHEFRBEMEEZELD
provision of slimming services BEEM 85,853
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FARBRYEMEEZENEE
recognising revenue during the year was included  ZiE 4 Jist ARG 2
in new contract liabilities entered during the year FetaER (65,753)
Exchange adjustments ME W, I8 EE (333)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NAF=A=+—AH 20,090
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables 2 S 508 12,641 52,983
Other payables and accrued charges HERNRIERETEA 151,596 132,702
164,237 185,685
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FrE BB B 5008 R H Ath JB 1~ SRIB TR B %
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. R—FRNBENBIRERKEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %44 B # R T M =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 3B 585N BB TYIR)
21 Trade and other payables (Continued) 21 ERESZREREMENSKIE
4z )
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with AN RET AFE B 5 5018 I E h FE (4 3008
the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting ZENESTENRERARZER DN
period:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Due within 1 month or on demand P E A A slopt KA £ HA 12,641 52,983

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ & Z#ZRAEMRA A

L Annual Report 2018/19 FERE



(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)

financial position represents:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
— Provisional tax paid
— Balance of profit tax provision
relating to prior year

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
— Provision for the year (note 6(a))
— Provisional tax paid

Represented by:
Current tax recoverable
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

Current tax payable
— Hong Kong Profits Tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

BAENEMR

— DERH

— ERABEFEENGHER
KRR

PRI RMER
— FABUE(HiF6()
— DEHH

ATFIRE &R
AW = BN AR IR
— BENEHR

FERTE BT IR
— BENEH
— PEEEMER

REEMBRREZRRAZERHE
18 -

2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
976 296
(8,998) (9,913)
(8,022) (9,617)
(12,244) (11,223)
10,138 7,981
(2,106) (3,242)
(10,128) (12,859)
2,016 —
(10,038) (9,617)
(2,106) (3,242)
(12,144) (12,859)
(10,128) (12,859)
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(b) Deferred tax

(b) EZERE

(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (i)

The components of deferred tax liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

Depreciation
in excess of

EERZFELFHERE -

Rl A B IR R 3R 2 BT
BERESS RAERZE
m

the related Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
EBRH
bzl H fth E B
wERE =8 at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Deferred tax arising from: UTREMEEZ
BRI :
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FmMA—H 874 2,887 3,761
Exchange adjustments b H B 93 309 402
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—-N\F=H
=+—H 967 3,196 4,163
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-—N\FHEOA—H 967 3,196 4,163
Exchange adjustments bE o SR (64) (211) (275)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—-NF=H
=+—H 903 2,985 3,888
(i) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (i) FEZELHEEE

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax liabilities relating

to temporary differences of approximately
HK$34,051,000 (2018: HK$39,437,000).
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(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

(iii) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$318,502,000 (2018: HK$295,818,000) and
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$42,185,000 (2018: HK$24,742,000) as it is
not probable that future taxable profits, against
which the assets can be utilised, will be available
in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of the
total tax losses, approximately HK$134,163,000
(2018: HK$146,717,000) will expire within 5 years
and the remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$184,339,000 (2018: HK$149,101,000) have
no expiry date under the current tax legislation.

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of
the Group and the eligible employees are each required to
make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

(b) EZEBE(E)
(iii) REFBELFREE -

HEZZT—NF=A=+—
H - B4R % A
FHEBESKERETAAESR K
RERB =N BHEEE -
WMASEBY ER R E
& 8 #7318,502,000/8 7T
(=& — )\ FF : 295,818,000
BIT) RPN E R AL
42,185,000 7L(= E — N\
£F 1 24,742,00078 7T ) R IE
EFREEE - HEEIEHBRE
A - #7134,163,000 8L ( ==
—/\%F : 146,717,000 7T) #
REFAER @ Meg THES
18 #7184,339,000 (= &
— )\ 1 149,101,000 7 7T ) 1R
BRTRELEERA

AEBRBEEERIERTES G A
REBEBEEMBEO(ZED ) RIAE &
BERZRERBRHIMERTERTE([3
BeFtEl)) - BB AHBLZEA
B2 ERHEFERKGTE - RIFWEDFT
g AEEETHBRRRAEREERS
BAZREEREBARZS%AGTEIELE
AR BIMEHER - B 2 @BIEFRRER S
& A 18R A 30,0008 7T Mt EI1EH
ZHRENERE -

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



At 31 March 2019 and 2018, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
MPF scheme. At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.
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(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

(a)

R-ZEBE—ARNE_A-+NHHEKEHZ
RS B

RARARIRZZE—R"F_A=+MH
R —ER AR S AR ar
g - BREFEEEELAQA
MeEBRSHERTERE ER
BEHARA R HEEMTEA
AN RERSETBER 2 SB35
B BREFEICEEKBEER
BARRAR/SHEEAMBRRZ
SRS EBEE  THRABXRR
BE(BERT  FRTEZERBEY
HHMITES)  UREZSE2ERE
HARAR/HZEMERRMEL
BRt 2 EMER - REANREEE
RzAtL-

BRERZKEIETETEERS
HE - GOBRER THE AR
ARE AR R BB - BAE
ZTTEMEHETS2ERTE
HEBRERNRHBBRFRIET
£ - B MR 8/ HE/E B BT RT i
BT FRIESRDBRE -

RIZE R R AR FHEAEM
BRERT BB R ERITR A
BARBETER R ETER A g%
Tzhh&ES8E - TEEBEETE
BEEITA 2 30% °
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(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
plans of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant in excess
of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular
and the approval from the Company’s shareholders in a
general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of the
option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of a share.
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R REBRTTZ M AAE HRNEE
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BROBAME#TROBKEZ1% @ Al
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AR BCR KRS _EHLE ©

RIZE AR R L 2R ER
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(b)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are

as follows:

Options granted to directors:
— on 10 March 2016
— on 31 August 2018

Options granted to Chief Executive
Officer:
— on 10 March 2016
— on 31 August 2018

Options granted to Chief Operation
Officer:
— on 31 August 2018

Options granted to a consultant:
— on 31 August 2018

Total share options

RYTES 2B
—RZZE—RF=A+H

- RZEBE—-NFENA=+—H

B TRBE 2 B -

— RZE—AR"F=ZATH

- RZE-NFNA=1+—H

RYRTEERE ZBRE

- RZEBE-NFENA=+—H

By — 2Bz BkE

- RZEBE—-NFENA=+—H

BRERE

(b)

REE-E-NER-ZE-NE=
B=+—BLEEGEEZBEHER
BHHENT

Number of Contractual life
options of options
B BREZ
£ =] EHEH
2,276,420 5.0 years &
18,211,250 5.0 years
2,276,419 5.0 years &
4,552,750 5.0 years &
6,829,250 5.0 years &
6,829,250 5.0 years &
40,975,339

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



() The number and weighted average exercise prices

of share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

Exercisable at the end
of the year

RE R ARITHE

RERERH

RERHARITE

REKAITE

(c) BREBERMEFHITEEN

T :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
InfEF g B hn#gE 5 B AR A
TEE HE 1IE(E #H
HK$ HK$ (restated)
BT BT (&E7)

(restated)

(s&E5)
1.0560 4,552,839 1.0560 4,552,839
0.3040 36,422,500 N/A 3@ A -
0.3876 40,975,339 1.0560 4,552,839
0.3876 40,975,339 1.0560 4,552,839

The options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had an
exercise price of HK$0.3040 to HK$1.0560 (2018
(restated): HK$1.0560) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 4.14 years (2018: 2.94

years).
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(d)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted on 31 August
2018 is measured based on a Binomial Lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the model.

The significant assumptions made in deriving the fair
value of the share options granted on 31 August 2018
are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date

Share price (restated)

Exercise price (restated)

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the modeling under

Option life (expressed as weighted average life
used in the modeling under Binomial Lattice

Expected dividends
Risk-free interest rate
Early exercise behavior

The number and exercise prices of the options and
the share price of these options at the grant date as
disclosed in (b), (c) and (d) above are adjusted to reflect
the effect of share consolidation, which was completed
on 11 June 2019 (see note 36(ii).

(d)

REtEHEZAFE

BRE(EES)

TEEEE)

& HASR 08 (LA — B S B AR =X
18 TR P AN TR 8

Binomial Lattice model) =)

BEASREEAMR (LA — 1A B AR =
18 TR P AN T HAR

model) =R)

TEARAR B

5 i 6 2

RETETA

BREAFERRBRR

BhE I R O 2 B WEUIR 15 A
EN2EMELBREZ A FER
E-RZZE-N\FEN\A=+—HBE
RHBEREz A FEAFTZZARN
REEAEL AR - BEREAOSF
HAZRAZHAHE - ZRAL
BREURRITEZER -

AER_ZE-NFNA=F+—HBEK
B AR 2 A ST (B RS AT IE H E AR
RIOT -

HK$0.0151 %7t
HK$0.2880 % 7T
HK$0.3040 % 7T

66.30%

5.0 years
Nil Z
2.14%
185%

BN £ (b) ~ (c) K (d) R - BB AR HE
BERITEEANZEBERENER
HAEMZBRECHE  URBRRZ
E-NFRAT—BERZIBNAE
B (RHEE36(1) 2 & °
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On 28 December 2012, the Company, Bravo Media Limited
(“BML”) and Beauty University Management Limited (“BUML”)
entered into an investment agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the independent third party
subscribed new shares in BUML, representing 20% of
the enlarged issued share capital of BUML, at a cash
consideration of HK$20,000,000. Further details of this
transaction were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 December 2012.

Prior to the issue of new shares under the investment
agreement, BUML was a wholly-owned subsidiary of BML
which is wholly-owned by the Company. Upon the issue
of new shares in BUML on 28 March 2013, the Group’s
effective interest in BUML was reduced from 100% to
80%. This change in the Group’s interest in BUML did not
result in a loss of control over BUML and was accounted
for as an equity transaction, whereby adjustments were
made to reflect an increase in non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$3,508,000 and an increase in other
reserve of approximately HK$16,492,000 at the date of issue
of the new shares in BUML.
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RZEB——F+A=Z+N\A KRAA
Bravo Media Limited ([BML]) & 3EREX
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Pursuant to the investment agreement, in the event that
BUML fails to procure the listing of its shares or the listing
of the shares of an entity holding the business of BUML
on an internationally recognised stock exchange with the
market capitalisation size of such listing of not less than
HK$200,000,000 on or before 28 December 2017, the
independent third party shall have the right, but not an
obligation, to request the Company to purchase all of the
shares of BUML then held by the independent third party
for HK$20,000,000 (the “Put Option Right”) within 90 days
from the receipt of the written notice by BUML from the
independent third party to communicate its intent to exercise
the Put Option Right (the “Put Option Notice Period”). If
the Company failed to purchase all of the shares of BUML
then held by the independent third party for HK$20,000,000
within the Put Option Notice Period, BML and/or the
Company shall be obligated to take up and fulfil BUML’s
obligations in relation to the Put Option Right under the
investment agreement within 90 days from the end of the
Put Option Notice Period. The fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 of the Group and of the Company under the
Put Option Right had been accounted for as other liabilities
in the consolidated and Company’s statement of financial
position. The effective interest rate of the other liabilities was
4.00% per annum. During the year ended 31 March 2018, an
imputed interest on the other liabilities of HK$763,000 was
recognised as finance costs in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

On 27 March 2018, as the Put Option Notice Period
had been expired, the fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 and cumulative imputed interest of
HK$3,556,000 were derecognised.

BIBERERE  NEBREBRER_Z
—+tF+ A=+ NRBERSKZAREE
BRORBBERABHERIM ETAFE
EEAEBEB EEBRONBIKRR
BAXGH EM(BE LM cmERET
13 1K52200,000,000% 7T) * BIBILE =
FHEBEFN(MIEET)JERARAR
FEASBEREBYFE-AZERRAAN R
FEAITERGEE(RLHAE]DER
Z B MiE0 B ([ Rof AAREmAH ) A
20,000,000 8 T EERBBLE=T
RBZHMBEEBAZRG o WARFIREE
A 3R Jh HA#E @ 40 3 9 B4 20,000,000 7% 7T
BEERMBYE - ARBBZAEEERAX
BRH BMLE,/ S ARAIBETRR
h AR AN EACR R 5T 90 B AAE RIETT
EBABRBREMEN RO R
B2 EBM - AEERAQF NG HAER
T2 #AaERFE16,444,00078 T A 4R
G RARBFBRARAARIIEEME
o HBEZERFMNER/400E -
HE-_Z— \F-ZA=-t+—HILFE H
e EZHERE 763,000 TR AE
mRERBRMERA -

RZEBE—NEF=ZA=-++tHB BARAR
HHEBEAMBEER REBEZAT
516,444,000 7T &k R & & | &
3,556,000 % 7T B 4K IE TR ©
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(@) Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares: L
At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 R-Z—N\F=ZA=+—8
of HK$0.02 each P == —nifﬂf+—5
BMAEE0.02/87T

Issued and fully paid: EERTRARE:

Ordinary shares: TR

At 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 W-ZE—N\F=A=+—8H
of HK$0.02 each &:;*h¢:H:+fE

FREEO0.02E T

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

(b) Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HKS$Nil).
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(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Share premium

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the
aggregate amount of the value of the premiums
on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account. The application of the share
premium account is governed by the Companies
Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in
a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy set out in note 2(y).

(c)

REEEREHN

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R E

RIEASBHSARNE LA
PO BTG - T AR
ReHMRRE  HAK—F
MEREBD < BB ERRE
ZREBABMEER - B
B aBERIXASHEATA
HRE e

B IFEBEE A D IRSOR AR
BER - ARRHKAIRNERHE
AEEHEETIMEERERE
% BAITFERDEERRA
ARRBERD SIS

B R

EHEREARRETEBK
ZHEBEARARER _-FF
=F+—AmBz&EEEAF
BEBBROEBANB LR
BARBRD S EREREZE
B E—HHBENARFAR
HAE—_TT=_F+—HtHZ
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(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Share-based payment reserve

(v)

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(u)(ii).
PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10% of
its after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to the general reserve until the reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation for
the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
HK$3,282,000 (2018: HK$2,994,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2018: HK$Nil).
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(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

PRC statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board
of directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong
Kong reporting purposes, this appropriation is
charged to profit or loss and included in other
payables and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between
the fair value of the consideration received and
the carrying amount of the net assets of BUML
attributable to the non-controlling interests; (i) the
fair value of gross liability of written put option
issued by the Company in connection with the
disposal of 20% equity interest in BUML that do
not result in a loss of control by the Group; and
(i) the excess of the fair value of consideration
received for the disposal of 25% equity interest in
a non-wholly owned subsidiary over the increase
in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interest.

Distributability of reserves

At 31

March 2019, the Company’s reserves

available for distribution to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$396,276,000 (2018:
HK$426,978,000).
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(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure on the basis of net debt-to-capital
ratio of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank loans, trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, and amounts due to related parties, less cash
and cash equivalents; and capital, which comprises all
components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.
Based on the recommendation of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to financial assets at FVPL,
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, amounts due from
related parties, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a concentration of credit risk as 13%
(2018: 40%) and 25% (2018: 73%) of total trade
receivables was due from the largest customer
and five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These take into account the customer’s past
payment history, financial position and other
factors. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
to 90 days from the billing date.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

Annual Report 2018/19 FEH &

(a)

FERBR(E)

(i)

EREZHE

rEEfER 2 EERREE
RESRPZ AR FIHTE -
REMAR - AEBBREY
BOHRIBREFRBEIZN(ZF
— \F 40%) R25% (= &
—N\F 1 73%) 2 Bl K&K
BEFEFRAREF  MAEEHR
EERBERIFENR -

FBEZERKBEETEEZEE
B2EPEHETHEREEF
iy e ZETHEBEREF 2B
) EA SR8 - BARS IR R E
tEZE - BB ZHIBERRE
A 302 90 HNEIHH -

o

REBZRBENKATBREE
EE 2 E ERWE 5B
ZEBEE  EERREE
[EErE - ARASEEB/IT ZE
EBFEBERITARTRATS,D
BETREATREEER - &
R BIERET ¢
—SPRAEETREFER 2
BE—FES -



(a)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables as at 31 March 2019:

Expected
loss rate
FEHEEE
%
Current (not past due) EH(RaA) 0.18%
Less than 1 month past #EI 1 {8 5
due 4.97%
1 to 2 months past due #Ef1 E21@A 9.90%
More than 2 but less B HARE A 2 (8 H
than 4 months past BALR4EA
due 25.00%
More than 4 but less B HARE A 4 (8 H
than 12 months past BLR121EA
due 50.00%
More than 12 months mHAREA 12 & A
past due 100.00%

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience in current year. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

(a)

FERRGE)

() EUESHEE)

TRV BERAASEHEE
T-NF=A=+—HBZEK
B HHIAZEERREA RE

HEEBB2ER
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount
FREAE EiERE REFEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
191,537 (345) 191,192
2,335 (116) 2,219
576 (57) 519
260 (130) 130
5,706 (5,706) —
200,414 (6,354) 194,060

BHIEREENAFEZER
BRLEEE - RFHLEROIE
AR ARRHE S BIREIE
HAR 2 S AROR - ATARR A
Ko AN 5% 18 4 R MR TR TR A AT {2
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(@) Credit risk (Continued) (a)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment (see note 2(l)(i) — policy
applicable prior to 1 April 2018). At 31 March
2018, trade receivables of HK$6,139,000
were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that only a portion of
the receivables was expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific loss allowance was
recognised.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that were
neither individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired as at 31 March 2018 were as follows:

Current (not past due) EH(CREA)
Less than 1 month past due B AP B A
More than 12 months past due mEREA 12 @ A

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39
(Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers
that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management
believed that no loss allowance was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in loss allowance in respect of trade
receivables

(a)

FERRGE)

()

EREZHE(E)

BERITERFEIFETZ
LB EH (&)

A HERORE 2 R MR IR B R
SHEARKEAES RIFEARE
ZBURFRR - REBEL
B BEEERR ARZER
FOEEERYESAES
BZEHBANTR R 2EW
B - Ft A E BHREED
ERE -

BRARKE SR 2 BIEEE

=<

HK$’000
FET
Balance at 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFHA—HZ&EH 3,350
Impairment losses recognised EHRRRBESE 3,685
Reversal of impairment losses BRI E RS (1,210)
Exchange adjustments bE W F8 5 314

Balance at 31 March 2018 and RZE—N\F=ZA=+—8K
at 1 April 2018 —E-)\FWA—H &R 6,139
Impairment losses recognised EHERREERE 874
Reversal of impairment losses B IR ERE (333)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 5 2 (326)
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZE-—NFZA=+—HZ&#% 6,354

No significant changes to estimation techniques
or assumptions were made during the reporting

period.

WEBA - EEH TR RER
wmHIRE A -
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(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

— internal credit rating

— external credit rating (as far as available)

— actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counterparties’
ability to meet its obligations
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(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group’s expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
il

Stage 1

Eoi 124

Stage 2

Ell 12

Stage 3

E=FER

Definition of category

BhRlzER

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination.
BRERAREERRAKEEN  BEE
BARLBREERENER

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired.
BRERAREERRE AEEN - BR
HBREERENER -

Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset
have occurred.

EEA-BERZERN - HEEMMARE
RensARERTER  ARRNERE
ERE -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the

Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from other

receivables and loans and interest receivables are

set out in notes 16 and 17 respectively.

(@) FERRGE)
(i) HRttz@MEE &)

AEEBHEEABERER
Z BRI

Basis for recognition of expected credit
loss provision

BRAMEEBRREZEE

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

FERR R 2R 12 B A M B AR H)E RO AT 8
AR K ATRHREEEEBHED -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.

ERKATBHERE(IRREBEESRTF
H) o

Lifetime expected losses is recognised
and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather
than the gross carrying amount.

BB E AR (FNr R ) (MIERRE 42
18) A B R AR R KA TE BB
BMEHA -

5 8 7 5= [ E) Lt LR T A
REWERRAMEmMESEZ(E
ERzE—FEL2ERD
RIS AME16 217 °
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets (Continued)

(A)

Loans and interest receivables

Loans to the top borrower and top five
borrowers constituted approximately 12%
and 48% (2018: 18% and 70%) of the
Group’s loans and interest receivables
balance respectively as at 31 March 2019.

The directors consider that the credit
risk arising from the loans receivable is
significantly mitigated by the collaterals held,
if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk.
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(@) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =EREE)

(i)  Other financial assets (Continued) (i) BMtL@EEE)
(A) Loans and interest receivables (Continued) A JENXEFRFIE(E)
Gross amortised cost amount of loans and R E R T B 2 sk
interest receivables HN A &R
Movements in the gross amortised cost EWE R RF B 2 8%
amount of loans and interest receivables A SRBEBINT ¢

were as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B-RER  E-RR  EZRER #st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET

Balance at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\F

MA—RBZ &% 56,227 - - 56,227
New originated HEE 101,550 — — 101,550
Transfer LBl (25,921) 25,921 - —
Repaid during the year FREER (63,010) - - (63,010)

Balance at 31 March 2019 WRZ-ZZE—NF=A

=t+—Hz&&% 68,846 25,921 — 94,767

Arising from: EEXBNUTEE:
— Loans receivable — U ER 68,615 24,778 - 93,393
— Interest receivables —EIF B 231 1,143 — 1,374
68,846 25,921 - 94,767
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(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Other financial assets (Continued)

(A) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

ECL allowances of loans and interest

receivables

An analysis of changes in the corresponding

ECL allowances is as follows:

Balance at 1 April 2017,
31 March 2018 and
1 April 2018

New loans originated
Transfer to lifetime ECLs
not credit impaired

Impact on year ended ECLs
of exposures transferred
between stages during
the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

Arising from:
— Loans receivable
— Interest receivables
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A EREZLRFE (&)
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Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KR E-RR 2 EZKER st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
920 — — 920
(586) 586 — _

— 3,658 — 3,658

334 4,244 — 4,578

333 3,913 - 4,246

1 331 — 332
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets (Continued)

(A)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, the Group managed
and analysed the credit risk for each of
the new and existing borrowers before
standard payment terms and conditions
were offered. If there was no independent
rating, the Group assessed the credit quality
of the borrower based on the borrower’s
financial position, past experience and
other factors. For loans principal exceeding
a predetermined amount, the Group held
collateral against these loans and interest
receivables in the form of guarantee
executed by the guarantor. Individual
risk limits were set based on the value of
collaterals provided by borrowers, if required,
and internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the directors. The credit
quality classification of loans receivable and
their respective interest receivables using the
Group’s credit rating system was set out in
the table below:
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(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) FEREGE)

(i)  Other financial assets (Continued) (i) BMtLHEEE)

(A)  Loans and interest receivables (Continued) A BEREZRFE(E)
Comparative information under HKAS 39 BB G ERE 395 IE
(Continued) T2 B ER(E)

2018

—T-N\F

HK$'000

THET

Performing JBiTH 56,167

Doubtful AR 60

Loss BB -

56,227
The Group considered the loans and NEERE WA R SF 88
respective interest receivables as doubtful if FoEmE BAS . B ABAR
the repayment of principal and/or of interest SRR B A NRIKIES SRR
had been overdue and principal, accrued R B EHZREEEKFEABR
interest and/or future interest might not be B o REERE  HAS R KT
fully secured by the collaterals. The Group BEZOAMBE @A AF
considered the loans and respective interest KAJge 2 BB RS K SF 8

receivables as loss if the repayment of B &= M ARRE E R BB RS IE -

principal and/or of interest had been overdue
for more than 12 months and the collection
of principal and/or of interest in full was
improbable.
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets (Continued)

(A)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39
(Continued)

The Group estimated and recognised
impairment losses for the loans and interest
receivables considered as “doubtful” and
“loss”, taking into account of the fair values
of collaterals which were inadequate to
cover the loans and interest receivables. The
amount of doubtful and loss of loans and
interest receivables were HK$60,000 as at
31 March 2018.

The Group performed collective assessment
of the loans receivable considered as
“performing” by grouping together all
its receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics. The impairment review
was carried out on all those loans and
interest receivables based on the historical
impairment rates. Since the historical
impairment rate was zero during the current
and prior year, the management therefore
considered that the collective impairment
loss was HK$Nil as at 31 March 2018.

The amount of provision for impairment was
monitored by the management on a monthly
basis.
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(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets (Continued)

B)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The Group accounts for its
credit risk by appropriately providing for
expected credit losses on a timely basis. In
calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of receivables and adjusts for
forward looking macroeconomic data.

The Group’s other receivables as at 31
March 2019 comprise mainly amounts due
from business partners and consultants,
advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to approximately HK$68,532,000
(2018: HK$68,190,000) in total.

At 31 March 2019, amounts due from
business partners and consultants,
advances to staff and trade deposits of
HK$20,061,000 (2018: HK$14,796,000)
were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related
to debtors that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a
portion of the receivables was expected to
be recovered. Consequently, specific loss

allowance was recognised.
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(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Other financial assets (Continued)

B)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

ECLs allowances of deposits and other
receivables

An analysis of changes in the corresponding

(@) FERRGE)
(i) HRttz@MEE &)

(B) HEEHK AT EZEM
EHEEF)

B REAMERRIE
BHEEEERE

HENBEHEREEEZ

ECL allowances is as follows: BE) s OMWT
Under
HKAS 39
Under HKFRS 9 E -6
ERUEREENSEOR ERI%E39%
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
E-KB KR EZER b by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FE7 FEr FE1 FET
Balance at 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=R
=t+-Rz&H - - - - 14,796
Transfer E= - 14,796 - 14,796 (14,796)
Balance at 1 April 2018 RZE-\EWA—H
LA - 14,796 - 14,796 -
New receivables originated MEERKTE 41 - - 41 -
Transfer to lifetime ECLs not credit ~ E&FKAEHEE
impaired BEMEEERE (16) 16 - - -
Impact on year ended ECLs of FRNRER . HER
exposures transferred between FREHEEER
stages during the year el d %4 - 5,224 - 5,004 -
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZE-A%=AR
=t+—-Rz&H 25 20,036 - 20,061 -
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(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Other financial assets (Continued)

(B) Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

ECLs allowances of deposits and other
receivables (Continued)

Except for the abovementioned receivables,
the Group has assessed that the expected
credit losses rate for other financial assets
at amortised costs is immaterial under 12
months expected losses method. Thus no
loss allowance for other financial assets at
amortised costs.

No significant changes to estimation
techniques or assumptions were made
during the reporting period.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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(a)

(b)

FERBR(E)
(i) ERMz@MEE &)

(B) KB AT EZEM
EHMEE (&)

B R EAEWRIA
B EERIRRE(E)

Bk bt e ORIE SN - K
SEE®RI12( A EH
BRA G REHER AR
AEZEMERMEEL
BEHMEEERRYTE
Ko Bt I Eph i 8
HAARFTEZ Sl
BEFHEMERRE

WEHA I A
MRRRIELERES -

RBESER

AEEETENSEEBEERAR
GeHeEl  BERcBHKEH
BRERFEEFRAENBERREH
Ko EEEEBEE THEERENK
T AKRARREFTSHME K
SEZBRAEHERB I LAY
RBESFR  UBRELFTR
RefelAETEZSRBEZR
WMEHRMERE  UWEMNEREH
RBELHE -



(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments, computed using contractual rates or, if

floating, based on rates current at the end of the

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

Bank loans KITER
Trade payables ENES5E
Other payables and accrued charges  EAERZUB R &

Amounts due to related parties EREEALIE

(b) REBEERRE(E)
THRFMTERSHREEN 2R
RZBTEHENEE  REAAR
REERNEB(BERAELHNEN
()28 IR 2WMBRZRITH X
SEZAEMT) RAEE R AL
Nz &P EERR -
2019 2018
ZE8-NF E-0\E
Total Within Total Within
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year
Carrying  undiscounted oron Carrying  undiscounted or on
amount cash flow demand amount cash flow demand
BORER 1R SNRER 1ERg,
REE RERBAR EEX FAH Hensgs EEX
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fir FEr FEr AT AT AT
- - - 99,976 99,976 99,976
12,641 12,641 12,641 52,983 52,983 52,983
151,596 151,596 151,596 132,702 132,702 132,702
402 402 402 16,808 16,808 16,808
164,639 164,639 164,639 302,469 302,469 302,469
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(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits, loans receivable and bank loans. Deposits
placed and borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile

of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits
less net interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice

(c)

AR E R

AEBEZNZRAREBZRBRITHE
F o EREERRRITER - EFENX
ZERBRRIBRERBLZER
DRSAEEARRSRENEE
BRAFEMNERRR AEEEER
BREERZNEESEHMN () -

() FFELE
TRAMAKREREHFARZ

Tr 7O R (BN R 1T 17 OB B
TREEFE RZ2AR)Z

versa) at the end of the reporting period. FEAE o
2019 2018
—2-1E —T-0\#
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
1SS BERRF=
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
FET FET
Variable rate SRS
deposits:
Bank deposits and  HRITF R IRTT
cash at bank Re 2.20% 61,305 1.97% 110,102
Net fixed rate EBFER
deposits/ (fBE)FH
(borrowings):
Loans receivable FEW B 3K 5% — 48% 89,147  10% — 42% 55,816
Bank loans IRITE N/A T3 F - 4.36% (99,976)
89,147 (44,160)
Total net deposits 17 F4EEE 150,452 65,942
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(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s loss
after tax and decreased/increased the Group’s
accumulated losses by approximately HK$460,000
(2018: increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$826,000). Other components of equity would
not be affected (2018: HK$NIl) by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after-
tax and accumulated losses assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

(c)

(d)

MR (E)
(ii) BT

R_E—NF=ZA=+—8"
BEtFIRER EF B 100
EEZMATEEMmEHRTE
REBZBRBEBEERD,
EMEAER 2 RETEEBBR
L /38 1 #)460,00078 TT(=
T—)N\F  AEEZBREER
) R AR R 5 F #5385 0SB A 49
826,000/% 7T ) o H ftb # 5 H
AT IR EEEHTE(Z

T\ BT o

g RESMBERASEEZ
PR 18 0 ) B2 R ES 18 2 B RS
2y EPRIJFNEEHERN
EHRPRELEREEANZE
FREZETESR T A ZFIR
B A FE RE © 100 {3 2 28 F+ %
EEREHEE T —EFE R
& HRT 2 BRI A R A gt A IR
B o —T— \FRER
EAREEITHH o

SR B

HRABOHE - WA~ BE LA
SUNBBEBZEERFE &
AEEYBAZEAGERR -

ARBREALEINE SRR - A
m- EEESERINERR - L
SERNTERLIRERINERR
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(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVPL (see note 15).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange. Decisions
to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities
and other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms of
industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% (2018: 5%) in equity price, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately HK$3,852,000 (2018:
increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately HK$4,854,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would not be
affected (2018: HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2018.
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REE 2z FRERBRZMERKR
GEM LT - EBEFF KT HERE
AEHFREMITEEE CRRUAR
REBZRBHESZKMNIELER
&m WEHEGBRBEAEEBMREZR
HDEVRTRTTE ©

T-NAF=A=+—8 " f4&t
h$ﬁﬂtﬂ/T&me_7 N
F:5%)MAMBEMERTE
SEo BT EEERRTEESR
4/ $8 90 493,852,0008 JTT(= &
—N\F  NEBZBRBERF KR
B )i K B 1 hn Rk 2> 49 4,854,000
BIT) c EtirA R BO B TEX
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(®)

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis shall be
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

®

AREIE

(0

BAFENBZEHBEE
NFEER

REE DAL EEEER 2R
AZAFEHEZEBIAR
EEERESYHHREELSE
13MAFEFAEMATEZ=S
BAFEERETHE D8
REEAEZBRLEUTH
BRERMEAEAZE 2 /T8
REEREZHEMET

. EMMEE: EERE
— AR (VR 3 2
RAEERT S LIARE
B E2REAER
B EZATE-

e FoRME:ERF=
R ABR (A RES—
Mz A BREARE)
B ERAEANTAE
RBARBEZRF
B> TABREABE
BREMSHBEZBA
g -

e F=ZHME:EREX

TABEHABKE B
ZAFE -
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Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

At 31 March 2019

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong

Unlisted convertible bonds in
Hong Kong

Unlisted equity fund outside
Hong Kong

At 31 March 2018

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong

Unlisted convertible bonds in
Hong Kong

Unlisted equity fund outside
Hong Kong
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RZE-NFE=ZHA=1+-—H
REBZ EMBRAES
REEZFE LMK

B
BRBMNZFLEMBEARES

R-E-N\$=ZA=t-H
REBZ LHIRAES
REEZ I LT AR

&%
BEBIN I EMBAES

(H ATEFEE)

() BAFEIAEZEHBEEE)
RNFEER(E)
THREMAEESHITAEZR
FEFEEAR -

Fair value measurement
AVEHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-& ot F=R oy
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
92,269 - - 92,269
— - 12,182 12,182

- 9,307 - 9,307
92,269 9,307 12,182 113,758
116,271 — — 116,271
— — 11,911 11,911

- 9,717 — 9,717
116,271 9,717 11,911 137,899




(®)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements:

The fair value of the unlisted equity fund was
determined with reference to the net asset value
of the fund which are provided by the broker.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements:

The fair value of the unlisted convertible bonds
of approximately HK$12,182,000 (2018:
HK$11,911,000) as at 31 March 2019 represents
the aggregate of the fair value of the bonds as if
they do not include a conversion option and fair
value of the conversion option embedded in the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the bonds as if they do not
include a conversion option is determined using
discounted cash flows method. A discount rate
of 10.08% (2018: 12.05%) is applied. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount rate.

®

DV EE(E)

(i)

BAFHEINBZEHEE(E)

NFEER(E)

HE_ZT-—NFEZ-N\F
“A=T—HIEFE  F—H&
BAZE — M v R EEEIR - JRiE
BE=ZREANEL - N&H
CRERERBERNTEERE
By SMEPRER B EER -

F_RRAFEAEERZMAE
TERBANBE

FLEPEAREEZNFESE
RucEmmiEitES 2 EERE

R-_ZE—-hAhFZA=+—8"
FEMARKRES 2 ATFE
#4912,182,000 8 L(ZZE— N
F:11,911,0008 0) EEH
ZAFELE  BUTTEE
R K AT AR B 5 PR e 4
2 ATFE -

M TR EERE 2 BESA
FEERAMBEReREELE
7E o FTAANIRE A10.08% (=
ZT—N\F :12.05%) - A F{E
FTEHAR R ARILERE o
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(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of the conversion option embedded
in the convertible bonds is determined using
Binomial Lattice model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is the expected volatility. An
expected volatility of 70% (2018: 52%) is applied.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated
to the expected volatility.

The above fair values were determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to
valuation carried out by an independent valuer.

Movement in fair value measurements within Level
3 during the year are as follows:

Financial assets ERMEE
At 1 April KA —H
Interest received B B

(H AFEFEE)

(i)

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised MIEZFHER 2 AFEWE,

(B18)

in profit or loss

At 31 March R=A=+—H

The fair value changes are included in “fair value
(loss)/gains on financial assets at FVPL, net”
under “revenue” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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BAFHEIBZEZMEE (&)

RFEER(E)

AR EF M a2 QA F
BEAZEANEERENETE
MAFEFEMACERTH
BN ASIE RTBEKIE - AT
FAESFEATO% (ZZE— N\
F152%) AFEFE2ETE
B IE B IELLRRR -

ERAFEHRARREESE
BIYHEMETZEEETE °

FREZFGARZAFEFES
FHT -

2019 2018
—E-hE -5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
11,911 14,309
(240) (240)
511 (2,158)
12,182 11,911

ERATEBBEH ARAER
£ Mg2¢ | BT AT A A
Ba2 eREEY ATEE
18),/WasFE ] -



(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2019 and 2018.

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows from financing activities.

H AFEFEE)

(i) WHERFEIRZEMTA

ZRERBHZ X AN S SR AN DR 2
CRTAREEREEN TN
FRZF-N\F=ZA=+—RHZ
NFETEBERER -

TRFLAEEEREDHELEZBEE
B EREREMIFRSED SRUEHE
EZBENEERSRECEIRKR S
MEBNARBZHGERERERT O
REMEDELZEE -

Amount
due to a Bank Other
director loans liabilities Total
Bf—%
EENE RITER HthB & st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note 18) (note 19) (note 25)
(Wi 18) (Hiz£19) (Hizt25)
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tENA—H 20,338 67,731 19,237 107,306
Changes from financing cash BMEBRELHELE :
flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans — ##ERITE R Z FSHIA - 99,976 - 99,976
Repayment of bank loans EERITER - (74,982) - (74,982)
Interest on bank loans RITIEEZH S - (3,618) - (3,618)
Repayment to a director R—REREN (20,016) - - (20,016)
Total changes from financing MEREHE
cash flows g Eeks] (20,016) 21,376 - 1,360
Exchange adjustments EHAE 240 7,251 - 7,491
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Other changes:

Interest on other liabilities
(note 5(a))

Expiration of other liabilities

Interest on bank loans
(note 5(a))

Total other changes

At 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2018

Changes from financing cash
flows:

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest on bank loans

Total changes from financing
cash flows

Exchange adjustments

Other changes:
Transfer to operating activities
Interest on bank loans

(note 5(a))

Total changes

At 31 March 2019
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Hig g .
HinBEzHE
(B15t5(3))
Hi & EEm
RITIEEZH B
(B15t5(3))
Hin B E)iazs
R-B-NFEZA=1+—-8H
R-B-NENA—H
HERESHERE .
IERITERZFERE
EERITER

BITEHZHE

BERTREZPEE

ERAR

Hi 28 :
BRERELY
RITERZME (Mt ()

2HnE

R-E-RAFE=ZA=1+-—H

Amount

due to a Bank Other

director loans liabilities Total

Ef—%F

EENE RITER HthEE oy

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FHET FET FET
(note 18) (note 19) (note 25)
(i 18) (Hz#19) (Biz#25)

- - 763 763

- - (20,000) (20,000)

- 3,618 - 3,618

- 3,618 (19,2837) (15,619

562 99,976 - 100,538

562 99,976 - 100,538

— 93,528 - 93,528

— (187,056) - (187,056)

— (2,712 - (2,712)

— (96,240) - (96,240)

— (6,448) - (6,448)

(562) — - (562)

- 2,712 - 2,712

(562) 2,712 - 2,150




(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March (a)
2019 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Contracted but not provided for BRTHE R
— acquisition of property, plant and — WY - R RERE
equipment
(b) At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease (b)

payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 1FR
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBEBESFER

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to ten years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every one to four years
to reflect market rental. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material n=

R-B-hE=ZA=+—BXRET

MARGEDHRRRBEZERE
EMT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

212 1,424

R-BE—-hhE=A=+—80 ' BE
THRECLEHERSZHERE
HENROT :

2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
27,685 22,962
35,232 36,438
62,917 59,400

AEELSREMERTETYEL
EBEA - HE—ROTRE—E+
F o AEERBHER A G
BRIHE HENKAERE—EMN
FHMMIGM - ARBRTISZEE - #
BEHEREIAER -

T-AER-B-N\E=A=+—

contingent liabilities. H RNEESEERLAEE-
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Acquisition of Kowloon West Properties Development
Limited (“KW Properties”)

On 20 November 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in KW Properties. KW Properties was principally
engaged in property investment and its major asset was
a residential property in Hong Kong classified as land and
buildings.

In the opinion of management, the acquisition was in
substance an acquisition of the land and buildings, rather
than a business acquisition and therefore was excluded from
the scope of HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. As such,
the acquisition was not disclosed as a business combination
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 3.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this
transaction were as follows:

KB Kowloon West Properties
Development Limited ([ KW Properties |)

RZBE—+t&F+—A=+H A£EK
BE KW Properties 2 & SR AN 25 KW
Properties F EMEWERE - MEEXE
BEAWNSEALHNEF Y —HESBE
B3 JE

EEERLS HWRANBEIRKELBR
BF  MIBRERY - MUABERATEY
BHRELNEIRIEXHAM I 2HE -
It IR EARR B S 2R
FIMZMTERBR/RTAH -

FRRELGWNE s BENRFAEZS
BT :

HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment WX - W RS 15,812
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - Ze MEAEYRIA 336
Cash and cash equivalents RePREFEY 80
Other payables and accrued charges ﬁ{@)ﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ-%ﬁﬁ (228)
Shareholder’s loan R E R (11,531)
4,469
Assignment of a shareholder’s loan BE-—ERRZER 11,531
Total consideration satisfied by cash ReYHz@aRE 16,000
Net cash outflow arising on the acquisitions: IS E A 2 IR FEE
Cash consideration paid ENRENE 16,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B FTRER e KRS EEY (80)
15,920
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On 30 April 2018, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in Achieve Plus Investment Limited (“Achieve Plus”),
all the obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred

by Achieve Plus to the Company and shareholder’s loan
to an independent third party for a total consideration of

HK$8,500,000.

The assets and liabilities of Achieve Plus disposed at

completion date comprise:

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
Other receivables

Current tax payable

Amount due to the Group
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

Cash consideration
Net assets disposed of
Shareholder’s loan disposed

Gain on disposal

Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary:

Cash consideration

RZZE—NEFEEOA=+H  NEBBRN
WEBRRAG([RN ) 22 H#EmHE -
BRI AR AR AR SFE L MBEL - 8
EREEARBRERERTEILE=F ' 2
R (B 48,500,000/8 7T °

REXRABRHENRNZEEREBEER
eI

HK$’000

FET

"EYE 8,001

VI - R KRS 295

H b FEU FRIE 14

e E HAFE 1B (1)

e RS ERIR (5,312)

FEAS — R M B A B kI8 2)

FrHEMEE F5E 2,995

HE—RMB AR U

HK$’000

FET

HeNE 8,500

FribEmEE 2 F58 (2,995)

T &SR RE R (5,312)

ez WS 193
HE—RHBRARZESRAFEE

HK$’000

FET

HeRE 8,500

Annual Report 2018/19 FE#H &



(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@ FEEBAEMS

Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEFZERAB M (BFEH
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s HTHBREEN TARAIEE 2K
directors as disclosed in note 7 and senior BERENFSHEEAB ZHRIAE)M
management, is as follows: ™
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Directors BE=E
Directors’ fee EE=vikn 547 440
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & - 385 R E M@ F 1,584 3,468
Contributions to defined contribution — FE#FGRAKEH 2] 2 5K
retirement plan 42 46
Equity-settled share-based payment BREEROTRAX
expense 2,202 —
4,375 3,954
Senior management SREEAS
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 385 & H g F 3,600 3,600
Contributions to defined contribution  REMHFGRIRET 817 (5%
retirement plan 18 18
Equity-settled share-based payment A ERO R
expense 550 —
4,168 3,618
8,543 7,572
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note HNasET AIE IR AR
5(0)). 5(b)) °
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(b)

Other related party transactions (b)

In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned
in note 19, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions during the year:

Sales of goods to a holder of M—EIEEREEFBAHEE
non-controlling interest B

Sales of goods to a holder of non-controlling interest
were made at similar terms as the Group grants to
other customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
statements of financial position and in note 18.

HUREALRS

BREIFE19FTI 2 B E T HESN - AR
ERERNGHETATERBEAL
R

2019 2018
—B-hE —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#7 FHTT
97 22,016

1~ IR R A
TERARERT EMTS 2B
AR, -

[a]s]

fi

= O
N

HEEAN LT 2 BBRPBARRNEK R
FIFE 1848z -
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(a) Statement of financial position

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a related party

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY
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FRBEE
RHBARZIRE

RBEE
R W2 o /B8 X )RR

(a)

FBNFOR - e R AR

A
QEEEE
RekReFED

hRBAE

AN PNSIE O

Hip e 5A N BT B A
FEA BE 2 A L 500R

BEERH

B # AR R

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

4 4

517,409 545,710
1,338 1,309
1,866 —

127 93
520,740 547,112
4,107 4,732
2,972 2,870
1,046 1,046
8,125 8,648
512,615 538,464
512,619 538,468
109,268 109,268
403,351 429,200
512,619 538,468




(b) Movements in components of equity (b) HERMHZEEH

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual RAREE RN T Z BBz n &
components of equity during the year are as follows: BB
Share-based
Share Share payment Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses equity

ey BfeR  RENHER RieEf Zithg it
Note HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK8 000
#it AT AT AT AT TAT TT

At 1 April 2017 HZE-tEMA-7 109,268 778,605 200 (16,444) (841,709 531,042

Changes in equity for 2018: —F-NEEHEH
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZAEELEE

loss for the year - - - - (13.474) (13.474)
Expiration of other liabiities £t & BIEH 2% - - - 16,444 3556 20,000
At 31 March 2018 RZ2-NE=R=1-H 109,268 778,605 200 - (351,627) 538,468
At 1 April 2018 W-E-NERA-A 109,268 778,605 200 - (351,627) 538,468

Changes in equity for 2019: —F-AEERET:
Loss and total comprehensive  FNEERZAEEEE

loss for the year - - - - (30,252) (30,252)
Equity-settled shere-based ~ EARERA 325

transaction X - - 4,408 - - 4,408
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=f=1-A 109,268 778,605 6,625 - (381,879) 512,619
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At 31 March 2019, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of

these subsidiaries at 31 March 2019 are set out below:

Name of company

ARER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBRXEELMAL -

Sau San Tong Holdings Inc.

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited

Smartime International Investment Limited

Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd.

Wise Fortune Holdings Corp.

Sau San Tong China Development Limited

Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd.

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd.

Concept de beauté Limited

Linstitut Sau San Tong de la recherche

scientifique de beauté (en France) a Limited

BML

Annual Report 2018/19 FEH &

Place of
operations
E3E
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bk

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BEARAERAGE

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1000 REREE 1 2T BD

1 share of US§1 each
1REREB1 ZTBh

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI T2 RA

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 £ RN

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAE1ET R

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAEE 1 ET 2R

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREET ET2&H

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 £ RN

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAE1ET R

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 XL RS

1 share of US§1 each
AR )

RZZB-NF=A=+—H ARFEE
FHEERTINE LB (RBIUABRRAF
AR BB AIMNKIL TR - BIAR
HEBLABRARNABERZ E2E
BBEREHEZR - BRBAZAN - RN
BRIRERK - ZEMBRARAR 2N
FZA=T—HZFHBEWAT:

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERRELLA

Direct Indirect  Principal activity

E# BE  IEER

100% - Investment holding
REZRK

100% - Investment holding
RESRK

100% - Investment holding
REZRK

100% - Investment holding
REERK

100% - Investment holding
REERK

100% - Investment in securities and investment holding
RERERRRARR

100% - Inactive
EEe%

100% - Investment holding
REERK

100% - Inactive
EELx

100% - Inactive
e

100% - Investment holding

RERK



Name of company

ARER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Isl

(Continued)

REBELEEAMAL - (8)

Gold Platform Holdings Limited

Creative Time Investments Limited

Briliant Concept Co. Ltd.

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

lands:

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited (*SST(SH)'")

(note (i) (412 p)

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute

Limited (*SST(HZ)")

(Hangzhou)

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd.

(SST(SHDY") (note (i) (#st ()

Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Limited

Machiko Enterprises Inc.

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute

Limited (“SST(SZ)"

Yield Soar Limited

Siver Ally International Limited

BHERARLA

Silver Shore Holdings Limited

(Shenzhen)

Place of
operations

LESuE

Hong Kong

&%

Hong Kong

&%

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong

2%

Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Bk

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRARHE

10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAEE1ET 2R

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 £ RN

1 share of US$1 each
1RERERI ET R

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERAE 1 ZTRA

1,000 shares of US$1 each

1,000 RERAEE 1 ET R

100 shares of US$1 each
100ERAE 1 X TR
10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAEEETRR

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERAE 1 ZTLRA

100 shares of USS1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI ETLRR
1 share of US$1 each
1RERERI ET R

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI ET KRR

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

BRERERRLS
Direct Indirect
E# B

100% -
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 50%
- 51%
- 50%
- 100%
- 100%
- 51%
- 100%
100% -
100% -

Principal activity

IRRK

Investment holding

RELK

Investment holding

RELHK

Investm

ment holding
REER

Provision of management consultancy services

RREERARS

Investment holding

Inactive
Tauy

Investm

ment holding
REER

Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
RERR

Investm

ment holding
REZR

Property holding
EGEERES

Investment holding

RERRK
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Name of company

ARER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)
REBRXEEANAL (£

Win Ease (BVI) Limited
RERRAT

Profit Hunting Development Limited (‘Profit
Hunting’) (note (i) (422 (5)

Incorporated in the United States of America
(‘USA"):
RENEL7EZ8)) 7ML -

Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific

Research Institute Limited
/ncorporaied\m Hong Kong:
REBRMAL -

SCO Talent Search Gompany Limited
BRATERARAR

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited

BIERRAR

fesil]

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited
BHEMERRARAR

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim

Institute Limited
b5 e BEXARREERETLERAT

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim - Hong Kong

Institute (TST) Limited

BEREXRRRERRETO(LDE)ERAT B

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim - Hong Kong

Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited

Place of Particulars of issued
operations  and paid up capital

L3 BRARMERAHE

Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
Bk 1REREA1ETZRG
Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
Bk 1REREB1 T Rh
USA 1 share of US$1 each
*H 1REREB1 T Rh

Hong Kong 1 share
&%

BoERRXRRRERRETO(RRE)ERAT B

Sau San Tong Management Limited
BAEERERAA

SST Advertising Agency Limited
Bt EERBERAT
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1RB
Hong Kong 10,000 shares
&% 10,000 &K
Hong Kong 100 shares
Bk 100
Hong Kong 18,750 shares
Bk 18,750 Rkt
10,000 shares
10,000 Rt
100 shares
100581
Hong Kong 100 shares
Bk 100
Hong Kong 10,000 shares
; 10,000 &%

Proportion of effective

ownership interest

BRERERRLS
Direct Indirect
E# B
100% -
100% -
100% -
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

IRER

Investment in securities

EARE
Inactive

e

w

Inactive

e

w

Inactive
Emex

Sale of health and beauty products and
investment holding

BERBRXAERRRARK

Inactive
i

Provision of beauty and slimming services
RUXRRERMRSE
Provision of beauty and slimming services
RUXRRERRSE
Provision of beauty and slimming services
RUXRRERRS

Provision of management consultancy services

RHERFIRE

Provision of advertising agency services

RHRERERE



Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREERRELA
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
AER e EETRAERAGE B B TEEHR
Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)
REBIMAL - (8)
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
MARERAT &% 1RB REER
Highlight Intemational Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Sale of health and beauty products
SHERESERAR o 100t HERRRZRED
Sau San Tong Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 75%  Property holding
("SSTIHL")
EIERABRARAT(BEAZRARR])  FR 100t RENE
Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding
FRERAT Bk 10,000 FFR {3 REER
Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
XNERERAT Bk 1RB REER
Winner Sight Limited HongKong 2 shares - 100%  Inactive
EEARAT B 2R fEex
Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Inactive
RNERARAT o 1RB grex
BUML Hong Kong 100 shares - 80%  Provision of a proprietary intermet platform
XBAZ 3 100 k& to promote and sell simming beauty and
health related services and products and
investment holding
RESEREYE  ISERREARXARGE
RRE RERER - WRREER
Starry Crystal Limited HongKong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
REBRAT Bk 1R RERR
Wide Duo Limited HongKong 1 share - 80%  Inactive
RERRAT B 1RB fEe%
Trillon Well Intemat\ona\ Finance Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
ERERIBERAR o 1RB A RESK
Sun Fung Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of money lending services
Gl Bk 10,000 FFR {3 RUHERS
| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
EWXRERARAR Bk 10,0008 % REXAREBRE
KW Properties HongKong 1 share - 100%  Property investment
; 1RB NRRE
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Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERRERERLY
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
k2 BT ERTRBRRAE E# Mg TEER
Incorporated in Macau:
REFTEMA T
Sau San Tong Macau Limited Macau Registered capital of MOP25,000 - 96%  Provision of beauty and slimming Services
52 (2M)ERAT ilgl AR 25,000 2758 REXAREERS
Incorporated in the PRC:
REERHAT
LE-TREAERAA " LE-RE") The PRC Registered capital of US$150,000 - 50%  Provision of beauty and simming services
(note (i) (Wit () i AR 150,000 % REEAREEES
FARGBICEERRDE ("RERL The PRC Registered capital of US$5,000,000 - 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products
HE HHFE 5,000,000 %7 DEBEHRERER
—EERARE (R ERAR ((—T/RI)  ThePRC Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and simming services
hE $H 3,500,000 %7 REXDREBRE
—“EREBEE(MMBRAT (“—EBMMT)  ThePRC Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and simming services
hE FHE3,500,000%7 REEAREERS
AREXAEH(LR)ERAT The PRC Registered capital of HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services
HE & 21,000,00057 REXARHERE
B2 (L8 L RERENARAT The PRC Registered capital of RMB6,000,000 - 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
and investment holding
hE AR ARE6,000,0007 REEEZARBRRERR
LEEIEEEERARA The PRC Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of franchise services
hE AR AR 500,000 RENBAERE
ERRREH( L9 ERAA The PRC Registered capital of US$500,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
hE FHE 500,000 % T REXDREBRE
BEXNHH(L8)ERLA The PRC Registered capital of US$300,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services
hE A 300,000 % REXAREERS
B E AR ERHERAT The PRC Registered capital of RMB20,000,000 - 100% Inactive
HE HE R AR 20,000,000 Tauy
BaE8EB (15 ERAT The PRC Registered capital of US$150,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services and
investment holding
hE A 150,000% T REXARMEREI REERR
ENBEERYMLR) BRAR ThePRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Inactive
HE AR ARE500,0007T grex
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Note:

(i) Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD),

SST(SH) and Ei§—

E1F, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SST(SH),

the directors concluded that the Group has dominant power to
direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on the basis
of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of respective
companies because of contractual arrangements with the other
shareholders of respective companies.

(if) The subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 March

2019.

The following table lists out the information relating to the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year
Total comprehensive (10ss)/

income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities,

net

Cash flows from investing

activities, net

Cash flows from financing

activities, net

ERBEE
REaE
e
koAt

BE/(RAB)FE

RS REE

W

ER(BE)/ @

2HE(BR) i
B

NEEFERES
(B])/ &

B RS
5N
REEEEBF4
"R 9E
REREED B4
78 58
RERAED B4

BB Wy
nE ' FE

C

Byat

0] BENEE{EH A SST(SHD) * SST(SH) &
LB —EBSSTSHZ2EWERR)Z
50% FEA R - MR EER N 7 H M AR R
ZENRE  MEERARNEEHEEESE
BH - DRAEEHERANES L
ﬁé%%ﬂ%?éﬁ SST(SHD) & SST(SH) Z 18 %
EE

(ii) HHBARREE-_ZT—AE=ZA=+—
B 1 E AREMAKL

TREFEBEAREREEA SR E R
(TR ) 2B AR ZER - TX
25| 2 B E R A R R EEHA
ZEE e

2019
“E-NE

SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)

and its and its and its

subsidiary, subsidiary, subsidiary,

LE-Ef —E/FI  —EBRM
SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)

SSTIHL RkE R RH

BUML BaE  HWELF WEAE  HEAR
XEAE REER LB-ES FHAL -ESRN /RN
20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
- 44,451 328 3,422 467 -
11,030 2,422 47,215 268,890 95,918 3,696
(9,981) (58,388) (63,804)  (140,260)  (142,449) (26,497)
- - (3,888) - - -
1,049 (11,515) (20,149) 132,052 (46,064) (22,801)
209 (2,879) (10,075) 61,375 (22,571) (11,172

- - 33 2,365,690 3,130 -
(390) (915) (710) 30,365 (9,552) 93

- - (1,182) (10,236) 888 514

(79) (229) (356) 14,977 (4,680) 46

- - - (21,389) - -

(92) (57) 1 80,680 (3,799) -

- (1,238) (19) =

- (117,628) - -
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NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net
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RS AN L

FRPEE
RYEE
RPAE
FRPRE

K&/ (RfE)%E

FFEER B < REE

Y
FR(ER)/EH
TEKE/

(BB 28

DEEIFERER
(&),

REgergsRe
mE - FR

RERERG RS
ME - FR

RERERG RS

RE W
mE '

2018

—2-N\F
SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)
and its and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,  subsidiary,
HE—%% —EERI —EERM
SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
SSTIHL KA RE RE
BUML Egg HWEAR WBRR  MERAR
XBRE  REER BT &AL —EERN —EEmM
20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FET FHET
420 45,958 470 3,042 829 -
11,308 1,827 51,027 430,883 80,638 3,799
(10,289) (58,385) (65,590)  (278,552)  (118,867) (27,207)
- - (4,164) - - -
1,439 (10,600) (18,257) 165,373 (37,400 (23,408)
288 (2,650) (9,129) 72,237 (18,326) (11,470)
— — - 2,422,133 9,113 —
(2,033) (909) (3,636) 33,468 (2,434) (155)
- - 1,811 13,402 (1,034) (754)
(406) (227) (1,819) 16,400 (1,193 (76)
81) (93) (39) (45,842) 2,059 -
- - - (635) (19) -
- - - 21,376 — —



(i)

(ii)

Acquisition of assets through acquisition of a
subsidiary

On 8 April 2019, Profit Hunting, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
(the “Vendor”) for acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Earth Limited and all loans owing by Earth
Limited to the Vendor for a consideration of fair value
of HK$20,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). Earth Limited is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and is principally engaged in property investment and
its major asset was a residential property in Hong
Kong. Subject to the effect of the share consolidation
(see note 36(ii)), the consideration shall be satisfied
by the allotment and issue by the Company to the
Vendor of 67,567,567 consideration shares, credited
as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.296 per share
at completion. As at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Acquisition has
not been completed yet.

Share consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting hold on 10 June 2019, every 8 issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were
consolidated into 1 new ordinary share of HK$0.16
each (the “Share Consolidation”). Following the Share
Consolidation which has become effective on 11 June
2019, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$400,000,000 divided into 2,500,000,000 shares of
HK$0.16 each, of which 682,925,982 shares were in
issue and fully paid.

(M

(i)

BRWE-BNBARBRBEE

R-_ZE—NFMA=ZR A£EEZ
2 & ¥ A K B 2 7] Profit Hunting
HEvE=FIESFDILESR
&% 0 AUk B M Earth Limited 2
% 20 #E 25 LA K Earth Limited 4 K
BERZHBER REATFER
20,000,000 7T([4g 88 £ 18 |) -
Earth Limited B & B MK L2
EREMRAR TEWERE  H
TELEAETBZEEDE - BRiE
&0 & 0 2 52 2 (R 51 36(0) - 7T
REREEBRBAARFBRBENE
B #2517 67,567,567 IR E R
MDARIEBRRG ) MER - 8
TEASNR0.206 T - RLEZ
ERAMBHERR - WEEEER
TERK ©

&5 & B

BAR_ZE—NFENATHETH
RRFNRE L@EBMNEBERER
X SGeRERMEE2ETLZE
BORARBETEBREHAB1IRE
fig E {50.16 78 7T 19 ¥7 & @ k([ R
MEHD - RBROEHRZZE—N
FRNAT—HEBE  AQRIME
7E % 7N A 400,000,000 T(5H A
2,500,000,000 f% & % E {E0.16 /8
JLZ %D ) - B 682,925,982 % %
MREFEITRERE -
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The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charge for the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value.
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EFXEAAREEHBRERAZ L
vt B A S 2K SR 2 B A B A 3
BRKEATE - 0Bt BREERARE
AL ETHEE 2 FREL G R
B - EAAKES B ARG
gt e

(a) MERMNH

AEBEEEGFFGEERRETE
WME - BERRBREREEZMG
AR FR R AT E RS
A e tefb R0 E RIRE R L
WME - BELRBREVEEER
ERFHZBELREL - TR
Bel# kB FH FREERITE
BHRRRZTHMEEEREL -
fia T R HI D R SE AT (AR 5
AE R R Mt E REHER
HEBMBEIMORE BRI ER
Bl L2 B S IER RS 2 B E -

(b) FEERERSE

HEEmERAREZREEERE
BEZRSELBUZEREE-
EREEAEEREEHERSE
ABENBRHELAZHRRERENR
BEZRE - Mt ERE -



(c)

(d)

Impairment allowances on trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period. Where the
estimation is different from the previous estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

(c)

(d)
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(e)

(f)

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

The carrying amount of inventories has been disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
note 14.

Fair value of financial assets under Level 3
measurements

The fair value of unlisted convertible bonds is
determined by using valuation techniques including
reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair value.
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Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these consolidated financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

As disclosed in note 2(k), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some leases
as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their right and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees
will be required to account for all leases of more than 12
months in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value
of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition
of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new accounting
model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in profit or loss over the period of the lease.
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HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient for
not applying the new accounting model to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019, if necessary,
and will not restate the comparative information. As disclosed
in note 29(b), the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for properties
amounted to HK$62,917,000 as at 31 March 2019, a portion
of which is payable between one to ten years after the
reporting date. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the
opening balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding
right-of-use assets will be adjusted to HK$58,352,000, after
taking account the effects of discounting, as at 1 April 2019.

As a result of the Share Consolidation which was completed
on 11 June 2019 (see note 36(ii)), the earnings per share for
the year ended 31 March 2018 has been restated.
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